

#### THE ULTIMATE GUIDE

# How to Use ClickUp

"Since becoming our first partner in 2018, ZenPilot has stood out as the go-to solution for agencies who want to get the most out of ClickUp.

Their commitment to truly solving for the customer and providing the best customer experience is perfectly aligned with our mission at ClickUp - and it shows up in their results and the feedback we consistently hear about ZenPilot."



**Zeb Evans** Founder & CEO, ClickUp

# **Table of Contents**

Introduction	3
Step 1: Creating a ClickUp Workspace	4
Step 2: Choosing the Correct Pricing Plan	5
Step 3: Adjusting Personal Settings	6
Step 4: Inviting Your Implementation Team	7
Step 5: Turning On Helpful ClickApps	9
Step 6: Building Your ClickUp Hierarchy	10
Step 7: Building Your ClickUp Templates	19
Step 8: Leveraging Custom Fields	32
Step 9: Leveraging ClickUp Views	37
Step 10: Training Your Team and Launching	46
Step 11: Working in ClickUp	48
Step 12: Optimizing, Optimizing, Optimizing	52
Looking For An 'Easy Button'?	55



# Introduction

ClickUp is rapidly becoming one of the most popular project management systems on the market. With flexible pricing plans, robust features, extreme customization options, and the power to combine multiple apps into one, it's no wonder companies are making the switch.

But although ClickUp is one of the most powerful work and project management solutions on the market, it can also be the most daunting for new users. ClickUp comes as blank canvas and there's a million different ways to set it up.



If you want to actually "save one day per week" and unlock the visibility you were looking for when you installed ClickUp, you'll need to set it up properly.

As ClickUp's first ever and highest-rated solutions partner, having helped close to 3,000 different teams implement the platform, we've put together our ultimate setup guide for teams trying to make the most out of their ClickUp *Workspace*. This guide will walk you through everything you need to know when you're getting ClickUp set up for your business.

And if at any point you're ready to just hit the "Easy Button" and have ClickUp's highest-rated solutions partner lead you through this process, **book a call with my team here**.

# Ҳ zenpilot

# Step 1: Creating a ClickUp Workspace

Getting a ClickUp *Workspace* is relatively straightforward – just head to their website and click "Get Started. It's FREE" or "Sign Up".

Yes, ClickUp can be free!

You can use their Free Forever plan as long as you want. Feel free to start with the Free Forever plan to configure a few things in your Workspace before upgrading later (though I don't recommend using this plan for very long because of it's limitations).



After you sign up, you'll land on the home screen of your fresh, new, and sadly, empty, ClickUp *Workspace*. This will be your blank canvas for you to craft and mold to your workflows and processes. So, be prepared to pull out your palette and put on your beret!

6		Q Search	жк		🕀 New 🛛 🖉 🏭 🐌
Dunder Mifflin ~	Everything				Share
<ul> <li>And And And And And And And And And And</li></ul>	[D Board 🛱 Calendar ☵ List   + View	Show closed Hide		Q Search	Customize     Add Task     Search tasks
<ul> <li>Docs</li> <li>all Dashboards</li> <li>Whiteboards</li> <li>Whiteboards</li> <li>More</li> </ul>					
Favorites > Spaces * Everything					
<ul><li>₩ View all Spaces</li><li>+ Create Space</li></ul>					
		This Folder is empty. Create a L	ist to get started.		

And as mentioned earlier, while the endless customization options are a huge pro for ClickUp, they can also get a bit overwhelming. But don't worry, you're reading this guide so that you don't get overwhelmed!

Let's walk through exactly what you need to do tailor ClickUp to your needs, prepare it for your team, and save one day per week!



# Step 2: Choosing the Correct Pricing Plan

Before we get too far ahead, let's quickly discuss the different pricing plans available to help you make an informed decision on what you'll need.

ClickUp offers 5 unique pricing plans - Free Forever, Unlimited, Business, Business Plus, and Enterprise.



For most teams, we'd recommend you get your team on the *Business* plan at minimum. There's a lot of features missing in the *Unlimited* plan that can be extremely important for your business.

Yeah, I know, you'd think a plan labeled *Unlimited* wouldn't have any limitations, but unfortunately there are a few. Unless you're a mighty team of 1-5ish, you'll want to upgrade.

For a more thorough evaluation of which ClickUp pricing plan is right for you, we suggest you read our "How to Choose the Right ClickUp Pricing Plan" guide. This will walk you through every plan and discuss the major advantages to upgrading to the next tier.



# **Step 3: Adjusting Personal Settings**

After you've determined which pricing plan is best for you (you can always upgrade later so don't stress if you haven't fully figured this out), it's time to adjust some personal settings in your ClickUp profile.

This is important for every new user to evaluate and customize (especially the *Notification Settings*) to ensure ClickUp is set up the way you want it.

<b>(</b>				Q Sear					🕀 New 🔰 😪	• = (	
F │ Click ☆ to add	favorites to your toolbar. <u>Learn more</u>	Everything							Jeff Cypher Online		٦
<ul><li>Home</li><li>Inbox</li><li>Docs</li></ul>			alendar 🔰 + V	/iew/				Q Search	<ul> <li>Profile</li> <li>-Themes</li> <li>Settings</li> <li>Notification setting:</li> </ul>	5	
···· More	Cooce & to add floorite to your today. Learn more Cooce Notificatio imail Integration ClickUp API Of yor deals, your Of your deals, your deals, your deals, your Of your deals, your deals, your deals, your Of your deals, your	Dunder Mifflin We by Carbon Stor the Dunder Mifflin We inga carbon customized for each Warkspace you're part of Les incerier motifications for tasks that you're a Watcher on Least	m more	<b>.</b>		Lessrn m	Show closed Hide	9- (C) (T)	6 Hotkeys Э Download apps 음 Referrals		
Spaces       ** Everything       Image: Spaces       ** View all Spaces       + Create Space	301ng       Trash     Watcher set       Security & Permissions     When I crail       JEFF CYPHER     When a new	tings: When do you want to be added as a watche de a task or subtask v subtask is created in a parent task I am watching a task or subtask	r on a task?					Ū Ē	)Help 회 Trash D Log out	ď	
	Vy Settings When I com Norkspaces Smart Notifi Yotifications Wait Gr Sloud Storage	Interest on a task or subtask cations: When I'm active on the web, delay sendir interest v to send notifications	g notifications					Y	ou're on ᅌ ClickUp 3.0 Manage version	<b>→</b>	
	Zalendar Referrals .og out	50	mail M	✓ Ø	Inbox B	rowser					

Click on your Profile Icon in the top right corner and head to Settings first.

#### Under your My Settings, go through the sections like:

- Preferences: Choose light/dark mode, enable/disable hotkeys
- Notifications: Disable unnecessary email notifications (unless you want 1,000 emails from ClickUp a day, this is important!)
- Customization: Change colors, profile pic, etc

Spend some time in notifications especially. By default, your inbox will get bombarded with emails as activity happens. I'd disable almost all the email options since you'll get notifications inside of your ClickUp *Inbox* already.

The key is preventing notification overload early, or team members will get frustrated. You can always tweak notifications later.



# **Step 4: Inviting Your Implementation Team**

When it comes to project management software, it can be best to wait until your system is set up and ready-to-go before inviting your team.

Oftentimes, these kinds of systems can take months to implement, and inviting your team a wee-bit early can lead to stress, confusion, and even a failed project management implementation (hence why 3,000 teams have hired us to lead them through this process - it's not as easy as it seems).

We'd recommend that you invite your implementation team to start. This may be your leadership team, project managers, and/or process experts that will be with you as you get ClickUp ready to go for the larger team.

If you have questions about who should be on your implementation team, **book a call** with one of our experts to help set you up for success.

Trust me, the tech is great, but if you want ClickUp to work for you and your team, you'll need to make sure you get everything set up correctly, build *Templates*, and properly train your team on the software AND the expectations. **The key to a success is combining the right tools, with the right processes, and the right habits.** 





#### Anyways, I'm getting off of my soap box now, here's how to invite your team to ClickUp:

- **Step 1: Navigate to your** *Workspace Settings* **and click the** *People* **tab.**
- Step 2: Under the *People* tab, you'll see a nice big rectangle in the top right that'll allow you to enter the emails for your team members. You can write down all the emails for those that you want to invite and click *Invite*.
- Step 3: Decide who should be a Guest, Member, or Admin.
  - I'd reserve your Guest seats for contractors, freelancers, or clients.
  - Admin seats should be your leadership team or some assistants that would need access to billing settings or inviting other members.
  - Member seats are for everyone else!

٢					Q Search	жк			🕀 New 🛛 🥥	
<b>∓</b>   ci	ick 🕁 to add favorites to yo	ur toolbar. <u>Learn more</u>							loff Cupher	
Dur	nder Mifflin ~		Everything						Online	
~									A Profile	
G Hom	1e		Everything					/	C Themes	
⊡ noo	x			) Search	жк		A New A		🕸 Settings	
E Doc					UNA		011011 0	Q Śearch	A Notification settings	
Das	K BACK	Manage people					Learn more		器 Hotkeys	
eg wh	Settings	Q. Search by name	or email		Invite by email (multiple lines and CSV as	cepted)	Member - Invite		<ul> <li>Download apps</li> </ul>	
. Moi	DUNDER MIEELIN				You will not be charged for inviting up to 3 users.		MEMBERS		🛱 Referrals	
Spaces	Settings	Full members (2)	External Guests (0/30) 😡 Internal Guests (0	) @			Access to public Spaces, Docs and Dashboards,		⑦ Help	ď
🔆 Eve	People	우 You can invi	te 3 teammates for FREE. Your Workspace ha	s seats to fill.	rite		GUESTS		៣ Trash	
88 Vie	Teams	0	NAME	EMAIL	ROLE	SECURITY LA	Guest S Cannot be added to Spaces.			
+ Cre	Spaces	Jeff Cypher	() jeff@z	enpilot.com	Admin 🗸		Must be invited to Folders, Lists and tasks.			
	Import/Export	Inff Cupher		is?@amail.com	Ounor		ADMINS	00	You're on ClickUp 3.0	
	ClickApps	un official	cities of other	02.63101.0011	onio.		Manage Spaces, People, Billing, and other Workspace settings.	-	Manage version →	
	Integrations									
	Email Integration									
	Billing									
	Trash									
	Security & Permissions									
	CEFF OTPHER									

Again, begin by inviting your implementation team to start. Depending on your plan, you'll start paying for every member as you add them to the *Workspace*. Software costs can add up over time. You can save a few extra dollars by only inviting certain team members at the start.

And as everyone get's in, make sure they understand their *Permissions* to prevent confusion about what they can/can't access.

You'll always want to provide onboarding tasks and courses to help the team understand what's happening in ClickUp. Like I said earlier, ClickUp is great, but can be daunting for new team members. **Clarity = kindness. The more clarity you can provide the better.** This is one of the biggest project management lessons we've learned across our 3,000 different implementations.

# Ҳ zenpilot

# Step 5: Turning On Helpful ClickApps

Now that you're ready to roll, let's dive in to some more technical instructions. We'll begin with *ClickApps*!

Though you'll be prompted to decide on which *ClickApps* you'll want to turn on when you start building your *Spaces* in ClickUp, it's important to understand what they are and what's available.

ClickApps add functionality to your ClickUp Workspace, so they're invaluable for customizing to your use case. These can be turned on or off at your Workspace level, or within certain Spaces (but more on that when we talk about ClickUp's *Hierarchy*).

To see what's available and turn *ClickApps* on or off, navigate to you *Settings* (yet again), select *ClickApps*, and scroll through your options.



#### Some examples of ClickApps are:

- 1. Time Tracking: You can track time directly in ClickUp!
- 2. Time Estimates: The perfect pair to *Time Tracking*. This is also important for workload visibility.
- 3. Email: You can actually send emails directly from ClickUp Tasks to centralize communication.
- 4. Pulse: How long was someone logged in to ClickUp today? Pulse will tell you.
- 5. Giphy: I only communicate with Gifs so this is 100% necessary and should be turned on in all Workspaces.
- 6. Custom Fields: You'll need to have these turned on to customize your *Workspace* and create killer *Views* (or even build a CRM in ClickUp!)



*ClickApps* help add some modularity to ClickUp. And as you and your team get more familiar with ClickUp, you can turn more on, or leave them off depending on your preferences.

My biggest piece of advice - don't go overboard by adding too many *ClickApps* yet. Focus on the must-have basics first. And though it sounds enticing, you may be able to just turn *ClickUp Automations* off entirely for now. We've seen too many teams get too wrapped up in all of the cool features before learning and understanding the basics. **The result? A whole lotta complexity, confusion, and fires.** 

I'm not saying that'll happen to everyone, but sometimes K.I.S.S or keep it simple, stupid, is a great way to live. You'll find it much easier to start simple, gain traction, build momentum, and take it one feature at a time.

# Step 6: Building Your ClickUp Hierarchy

Now, here comes the exciting part! Let's actually start building stuff in ClickUp.

The ClickUp *Hierarchy* is my favorite part of ClickUp. It's built in a way that serves every member of your organization. When built correctly, your *Hierarchy* will play beautifully with *Views* to help your individual contributors, project managers, account managers, directors, C-suite, and clients see exactly what they need to see (but more on that later).

5		Q Search #	ŝK		🕀 New 🛛 😪	· ::: 🐌
D Dunder Mifflin ~	S Space / □ Folder /  ≡ List ···				Share Automation	s v Q
Home					_	
🗠 Inbox	List				Add Tas	sk ~
Docs	≔ List			O Search	🖶 Hide 🖓 Customize	^
II Dashboards	b board			Q Search		
ତ Whiteboards	Subtasks: Collapse all	Filters & Me mode & Assignees	Show closed Hide		Search tasks	
⋯ More	▼  ( ) TO DO 1 … + Add Task					
Favorites >	Name		Assignee	Due date	Priority	$\oplus$
Spaces	<ul> <li>Parent Task % 2</li> </ul>		A+	<b>₽</b>	F	
🔆 Everything	Subtask ≡ 0/3		A+	¢	P	
s Space	Subtask ≡ 0/3		<u>ج</u> +	¢	F	
🕞 Folder 🥶 +	+ Add Task					
≔ List 1						
🗄 View all Spaces						
+ Create Space						



# Why Does ClickUp's Hierarchy Matter?

Okay, I need to be real here again (another soapbox, sorry!). You should never, ever, ever, implement a new software system without a strategy. This seems to be forgotten about with project management systems. Business owners or leaders go and get a new project management system hoping that the tech will solve all of their pains - it doesn't.

#### Ask yourself this - what are we trying to solve?

Some teams may be looking for some productivity improvements, but others may be focused on just getting visibility in to profitability or project progress.

Your current challenges and goals will impact the way you construct your ClickUp *Workspace* (especially the *Hierarchy*). The way you set it up will either provide you or restrict you from seeing profitability, team utilization, contract statuses, project progress, etc.

This is exactly why we start every ClickUp implementation with a **Project Management Blueprint**. We capture your goals, survey your team, understand your current challenges, and build you the exact ClickUp structure you'll need to set yourself up for success.

"Now that we have the system [ClickUp] in place, my leadership team is able to make decisions on data and facts vs. what we think is happening. Additionally, now we have one system that tells us where we stand on any piece of work. "



Kim Garmon Hummel Chief Growth Guide, Sauce Agency

It may seem like it's not worth it now, but in a year from now, you'll potentially be lacking some critical visibility in to your business and you'll wish you set everything up right the first time. Anyways, off the soapbox...



# An Overview of ClickUp's Hierarchy

Again, understanding the ClickUp *Hierarchy* is crucial both for setting up your *Workspace* properly as well as taking full advantage of features like *Views*, *Custom Fields*, and *Automations* later on.

So let's take you on a tour of the *Hierarchy* to make sure you understand it completely.

#### Here are the main layers of organization within ClickUp:

- Workspace: When you join ClickUp, you create a user account and a *Workspace*. The *Workspace* is the highest level in ClickUp's *Hierarchy* and is typically named after your business. All work is organized within this *Workspace*.
- Space: Spaces are the next level in the *Hierarchy* and represent different departments or teams within an organization. Users can create multiple *Spaces* to keep their work organized.
- Folder: Folders can be created within Spaces to group together lists and tasks. While not necessary, Folders can be very helpful in organizing similar work. These often represent service categories, smaller department categories, or in the client services use case, a client.
- List: Lists are where the work lives. Lists can be used to represent work categories, service lines, or in the client services use case, a contract.
- Parent Task: Tasks are the actual work in your ClickUp Workspace. In most cases, Parent Tasks are best when they represent a deliverable or project phase/milestone, but they can also live on their own without Subtasks.
- Subtask: Subtasks are tasks that fall underneath your Parent Tasks. Subtasks can best be used to represent actionable steps or tasks that need to be taken to complete the Parent Task (a deliverable or project phase/milestone).
- Checklist: Checklists are the final level in the Hierarchy and can be added to any Task. They are best used when they serve as reminders for someone. They'll help ensure your team follows your process when completing a Task.

By using multiple layers in the *Hierarchy*, you'll keep your *Workspace* much more structured and organized - which will pay dividends in the long run.





# A Quick Hierarchy Example

To give you visual of what this may look like, here's a quick example...

Most client servicing teams - whether a marketing or creative agency, consultancy, financial services, or accounting firm - all have **three main departments within their organization**:

- **Growth:** Growth is where they grow their business marketing, sales, partnerships, etc. This is where they make their promise.
- **Delivery:** Delivery is where they serve their clients. This is where they keep their promise.
- Operations: Operations is the biggest junk drawer in business.
   This is where their people, culture, HR, finance, legal, etc. work lives. Everything that doesn't end up in growth or delivery, ends up here.

The way that the ClickUp *Hierarchy* is then built to reflect this bucketing of work would be simple. You'll have a Space for Growth, a Space for Delivery, and a Space for Operations.





Now beneath those Spaces we have our Folders and Lists.



Work is grouped together by department/team, broken into sub-departments, and then further broken up in to work categories.

The Delivery Space would be slightly different, but it would look like this:

- Space Delivery
  - Folder #1 Client X
    - List #1 Contract XYZ
    - List #2 Website Project
  - Folder #2 Client Y
    - List #1 Contract ABC

You can also leverage a Client Management *List* in this Delivery *Space* that will be the home for some

Delivery		
🕞 Client X	•••	+
Client Y	•••	+

onboarding Tasks and Tasks that are Delivery related, but not related to a specific client.

Just make sure that every *Task* has a home to live. *Task* locations are important! Especially if you're tracking time and want to know where your team is spending their time, or how profitable a certain or service is. Placing *Tasks* in random *Lists* (or even private *Lists*!) is the worst thing you can do. You'll lose a lot of visbility and insights for your business.



#### Lastly, the Parent Tasks and Subtasks would look like this:

- Parent Task Blog Post
  - Subtask #1 Create Blog Post Strategy
  - Subtask #2 Review Strategy and Outline Blog
  - Subtask #3 Approve Blog Outline
  - Subtask #4 Write Blog Copy
  - Subtask #5 Review Blog Copy
  - Subtask #6 Apply Blog Proofing Revisions
  - Subtask #7 Design Blog Images
  - Subtask #8 ....

This structure will help pass work back and forth, while also providing good visibility in to how far along the deliverable or project actually is.

The biggest mistake teams make in ClickUp is creating one *Parent Task*, assigning it to multiple people, and hoping the team will just magically pass work back and forth in the one task without anything slipping through the cracks. News flash - this doesn't work!

Name	
• •	[Blog Post] - Paper 101 🖏 16 🛆
	$\textcircled{Blog Post] - Paper 101} \\ \fbox{Create blog strategy and document in parent task notes} = $
	ⓐ $[Blog Post] - Paper 101$ Write blog outline / interview guide ≡ △
	[Blog Post] - Paper 101     Schedule blog interview or send interview guide to client ▲
	[Blog Post] - Paper 101     Complete blog interview with client ▲
	[Blog Post] - Paper 101     Write blog copy ▲
	[Blog Post] - Paper 101     Proof blog copy △
	[Blog Post] - Paper 101     Apply blog proofing revisions ▲
	[Blog Post] - Paper 101     Design blog imagery ▲
	[Blog Post] - Paper 101     Complete internal review of blog copy and design ▲
	Blog Post] - Paper 101 Send blog to client for their review
	<ul> <li>[Blog Post] - Paper 101</li> <li>Post client feedback of the blog to the next step </li> </ul>
	[Blog Post] - Paper 101 Apply client copy revisions to blog ▲

For more ClickUp mistakes that you should avoid, read our article, "The Biggest Mistakes Made in ClickUp (And How to Avoid Them)".

	Delivery (DEMO) / $\Box$ Michael Scott Paper Co. / = Retainer XY							Sh	are A
Dashboards	i≡ To Dos I := Work Categories I := Custom Fields È Date Remap  + View						Q Search	≡ Hide	le Custo
ন্থি Whiteboards									
. More	Subtasks: Expand All	Show closed	Hide						s
Favorites >	▼ Future 5 ··· + Add Task	Comments	Assignee	Due d	Time estimate	Time tracked	æ		
Spaces	IDinteract Campaign1 - "The Rect Cristomer Service in Deper" 9, 13, 10, 10	○ 1	Q+	1/8/24	¥ 15h 30m	0:00:00			
් Shared with me		0	0	Today	X 2h	0:00:00			
* Everything	○ Round 1: Draft Copy & Design Concepts \approx 0/4			,					
X Operations [DEMO]	[Pinterest Campaign] - "The Best Customer Service in Paper" Round 1: Create Ad Design = Ξ 0/6 △	Q	۲	Tomorrow	⊠ 4h	• 0:00:00			
Delivery [DEMO]	[Pinterest Campaign] - "The Best Customer Service in Paper" Round 1: Internal Review Copy Ξ 0/4 △	Q	9	Tue	区 1h	0:00:00			
<ul> <li>Schrute Farms</li> <li>Dunder Mifflin</li> </ul>	[Pinterest Campaign] - "The Best Customer Service in Paper" Round 1: Internal Review Copy ≡ 0/4 ▲	Q		Tue	⊠ 1h	• 0:00:00			
Michael Scott Paper Co.	$ \begin{tabular}{lllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$	Q	9	Wed	15m	• 0:00:00			
<ul> <li>Vance Refrigeration</li> <li>Athlead</li> </ul>	$ \begin{tabular}{lllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$	Q	()	Dec 22	⊠ 1h	• 0:00:00			
Serenity by Jan	[Pinterest Campaign] - "The Best Customer Service in Paper" Round 1: Paid Manager Review =  ≡ 0/2 △	Q	3	Dec 22	⊠ 30m	• 0:00:00			
LaVerne's Pies     Client Management	[Pinterest Campaign] - "The Best Customer Service in Paper" Round 1: QA & Send mockup to client for Review	Q		Dec 25	<u>X</u> 15m	0:00:00			
Growth [DEMO]	[Pinterest Campaign] - "The Best Customer Service in Paper" Round 2: Interpret & Share Client Feedback / Follow Up with Client = Ξ 0/4 Δ	Q		Dec 25	<u>⊠</u> 5m	0:00:00			
Marketing	$  \begin{tabular}{lllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$	Q		Dec 27	⊠ 30m	0:00:00			
i≡ Content	[Pinterest Campaign] - "The Best Customer Service in Paper" Round 2: Client Design Revisions	Q	۱	Dec 29	⊠ 30m	• 0:00:00			
≔ Email	[Pinterest Campaign] - "The Best Customer Service in Paper"	~		Dec 20	U 46m	• •••••			



# Setting Up Your ClickUp Spaces, Folders, and Lists

Remember to take the time to categorize and understand how your work should be structured in ClickUp before you actually jump in to ClickUp.



We'd recommend drawing this out in a Miro Board or Lucid Chart first. This will help with planning and visualizing it before you go crazy in ClickUp. And remember, if you'd like ClickUp's highest-rated solutions partner to build your ClickUp Blueprint for you, **book a call with my team** and we'll build one for you in less than 3 weeks.

"There is very little guessing work once you've set up the recommended hierarchy that ZenPilot customizes for you during the Blueprint process. Less energy is spent on trying to remember little details or wondering what tasks should take priority. We've shifted from reactive to fairly proactive. I have confidence in my team's ability to get work done, and if I have any doubt, I have full visibility. It allows for a lot of peace and open space to think deeply."

#### **Rebecca Nash** Director of Operations, Beam Content





After you have this figured out, start by building your first Space. The workflow is fairly straightforward:

- 1. Hover over the "+" icon next to Spaces and select Create Space.
- 2. Enter your desired Space name and description (you can also use a *Template*, but that's still to come).
- 3. Adjust the Space color and avatar.
- 4. Choose whether to make it private or public to your whole team. I'd recommend just keeping this public for now. You can change it later if necessary.
- 5. Select your preferred *Statuses*. We recommend keeping it simple at first with "Open", "In Progress", and "Closed". You can create a *Status Template* if you'd like, but keep these simple!
- 6. Toggle on important ClickApps like Time Tracking or Time Estimates.
- 7. Add in any required *Views*. You can just stick with the options they give you for now. These can always be edited and customized later on.
- 8. Click Review Space and Create to finish.



Repeat these steps to create multiple organizational Spaces in your Workspace.

Or, you can save this as a *ClickUp Template* and deploy it a few times to save you time. Feel free to fast forward to the *Templates* section in this guide if you'd like to do that.



# A Brief Thought on Statuses

*Status* complexity is another mistake I see teams make in ClickUp. Again, this is why standardization and having a strategy before you jump in to ClickUp is important.

### Most Teams Make Two Big Mistakes With ClickUp Statuses

#### imes Statuses become the source of truth for what step a project is on

Earlier, I recommended a *Parent Task* and *Subtask* structure that will pass work back and forth. Additionally, that structure will show and tell everyone that we just completed the first draft of our blog post or we sent the blog to our client.

But in reality, most teams build one *Parent Task*, assign a few people to it, and use the *Status* to show what stage or what step a project or deliverable is in. This will make work slip through the cracks, you'll lose workload visibility, and nobody will know who is in charge of what.

We'd recommend that 99% of the time, a status is either *To-Do* or *Complete*. Again, keep it simple. Your team will thank you for it. And you'll thank yourself for it.



#### imes Statuses are different for every department, team, and work category

Secondly, inconsistent or different Statuses will become a nightmare when you create *Dashboards* or *Views*.

It's hard to fully explain this right now, but feel free to experiment by creating different *Statuses* at every *Space* or *Folder*. Now, navigate to the *Everything* or *Workspace* level, create a *View*, and try to *Filter* or *Group* by *Status*. It's not easy... Don't do it. Keep it simple. You'll thank me later.



# Step 7: Building Your ClickUp Templates

As much as I want to skip ahead to discussing *Views* and *Custom Fields*, I think it's important that you understand how the ClickUp *Template Center* works.

ClickUp *Templates* are where you really start to unlock productivity and efficiency gains inside of the system. *Templates* help you standardize your work, connect your SOPs to tasks, and provide clarity for everyone.

You could go and start adding tasks to your workspace all willy nilly, but leveraging ClickUp *Templates* is the way to go, trust me.

								⊕ New
er Mifflin ~ Ever	Template Center	← Back				×		
() E	Workspace Templates 1	Q Search templates		🖻 Use Cases	🛇 Tags	₽ Created by	ch 🛱 Hide	🕄 Customize 🛛 Add Ta
80	ClickUp Templates 1508	Templates from your Workspace						Search tasks
bards	⇒ Activity Log	Teel						
oards	Template Types	lask						
	Space (57)							
	Folder (153)							
	List (626)							
ning	Dask (149)	Darant Task						
I Spaces	View (0)							
Space	Checklist (0)	Townships a loss Official day						
	Whiteboard (73)	Templates by ClickUp						
	Complexity	Marketing				See 163 more		
	Beginner (1272)	2 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11		÷ 15	-			
	Intermediate (316)	ang to the source of a state of the source	ClickU	Product ~ Se	olutions 🗸 🛛 Learn	<ul> <li>Pricing Enterpri</li> </ul>	50	Contact Sales Sign Up Log in
	Advanced (129)	nearbox         0	LickUp Templ	ates Q s	earch templates			Search
		Social Media Content Plan	2X2 Priority Matrix Whit evels	Crea	tive & Design			Can Mona 1
			Beginner					
		Contracting of the Second	Advonced				11:1-11	
		Bit constraint /         Bit         Bit         Bit         Bit           P Advalues         Advalues <th>Ise Cases</th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th>	Ise Cases					
		1         1	reative & Design	luct	Action Plan	Ø Ager	ncy Management	Apparel Design
		90 Day Instagram Success Check	A/B Content Manageme	ing Engli	neering & Product			See More   < >
			ik & Recruiding			•••••		
			tarketing operations	1				
			Ither				: 199 = 197	
			ersonal Use MO – Project Mar	agement	Affinity Diagram	💋 Agile	Project Managemer	nt 🧭 Agile Scrum Management
			rafessional Service ales & CRM	es Finar	nce & Accounting			See More   < >
					1			

Not saying you can't ever add an ad hoc task to your ClickUp *Workspace*, but if you can leverage ClickUp *Templates* for 85-90% of your task creation, you'll get way more out of ClickUp and build a much more productive and profitable business.



# Where Can You Find the ClickUp Template Center?

Thankfully, finding the ClickUp *Template Center* is relatively easy. You can find the *Template Center* multiple ways:

- 1. Navigate to your Sidebar Menu on the left. Hover over any Space, Folder, or List, and click on the ellipsis that shows. Click on Templates and then click Browse Templates.
- 2. You can also leverage *Slash* Commands. Type "/Template" anywhere you can type in ClickUp and you'll be able to pull up the *Template* Center.
- 3. Lastly, you can find the *Template Center* in your *Quick Action Menu* in the top right of your screen. Click on your *Quick Action Menu* (represented by 9 dots) and select the *Template Center* icon.



The ClickUp Template Center will be populated with ClickUp Templates. You can get started with some of these if you'd like, but be aware that all of them come with different Statuses and Custom Fields which could lead to complexities in your Workspace.



### What Can You Save as a Template in ClickUp?

As I discussed earlier, the beauty of ClickUp is the *Hierarchy*. Well, the even more beautiful part is that you can create a *Template* at just about any level of the *Hierarchy*.

**You can create** Space Templates, Folder Templates, List Templates, Task Templates, Checklist Templates, View Templates, Doc Templates, **and** Whiteboard Templates!

### How Do You Save a Template?

Saving Templates will follow a fairly similar process to finding the ClickUp Template Center.

Navigate to your Sidebar Menu on the left. Hover over any Space, Folder, or List, and click on the ellipsis that shows. Click on the Templates icon and then click Save as Template.

You can also navigate to any Task, Doc, View, Checklist, or Whiteboard and follow the same process.

🗅 🖹 Doc Templates	Client O	nboarding …						
🗅 🛛 View Templates	- 🖛 Taalka -	- 🗖 Data Dasahaduling 👘 I. Misur						~
🗅 Client Migration - Folder .								
🕞 New Client - Fold	Verdue 4 …							
≅ Client Onboarding	→ Create new → → → → → → → → → → → → →				🚖 Work Category	🚖 Task Type	📩 Role	🛨 Tea
$ ot\equiv otin Account Manageme$	∕∕ Rename	oarding n Control Record Crea     =        ≡  0/11		🛛 15m	Account Managem	Actionable	Account Manager	Acco
E Contract XY ∂	<ul> <li>Copy link</li> <li>Add to favorites</li> </ul>	oarding ′y - Client Folder Configur ≅ 0/4		🛛 15m	Account Managem	Actionable	Account Manager	Acco
≣ ⊕ Process Hub	b Duplicate	barding 🗞 15 🛆		🛛 5h 35m	Account Managem	► Non-Actionable		
Agency SOPs	> Move		6/23/21	प्र 5m	Account Managem	✓ Actionable	Sales	
📃 ZenPilot Template Libra 🦷	🎗 Templates 💦 👌	irm Invoice Devment = = = 0/2 🖨						
🗅 📍 ZP   Basic Workflov 🧃	Folder settings	Browse Templates	6/24/21	X 5m	Account Managem	Actionable	Sales	
💼 📍 ZP Library   Deliver		Save as Template			, is contracted by the second s			
🗅 📍 ZP Library   Deliver 🦷	Sharing & Permissions	G Update existing Template	6125121	∇ 20m		Actionable	Color	
🗈 📍 ZP Library   Growth 🗄	∃ Archive	te Handoff Plan with = $\equiv 0/3$ <b>(A)</b>	0/25/21		Account Managem	Actionable	Sales	
🖻 📍 ZP Library   Operat	J Delete	ss Library / New Client - Folder Templat		<b>Π</b> .5		T Anti-anti-la		
🖿 📍 ZP Library   Operation	Ser	nd Welcome Email Intr $\equiv \equiv 0/4$ 🛆	6/25/21	A 5m	Account Managem	Actionable	Sales	
	Proc	cess Library / New Client - Folder Templat						

You'll also see an Update Existing Template icon. And yes, this does exactly what it sounds like. You can save Templates, and update them.

But now, you're probably wondering, "how do I manage all of my *Templates* and update them?". And given that there a lot of types of *Templates* that can be leveraged, how should we use them? And how the heck do we manage them (from building, to updates, etc.)?



# **ClickUp Template Best Practices**

If you want to make the most out of the ClickUp *Template Center*, and get a more thorough deep dive into the best practices and template building process, I recommend you read our article (+ video tutorial), **"How to 10x Productivity With ClickUp Templates"**. That article will explain to you everything you need to know about ClickUp *Templates*. But anyways, while you're here, I'll give you a few pieces of advice.

### 1. Build a "Process Library" Space

If you could take one thing away from this guide it would be this - your project management system is almost useless without process templates. It seems harsh, but it's true. Documenting your processes and saving them as templates is one of the most important steps every business will and needs to take. **Chaos will exist without processes.** 

So to do this best, I recommend you build one of the most powerful assets your company could ever have - your "Process Library". Your "Process Library" will be a separate *Space* in your ClickUp *Workspace* solely dedicated to building and storing your process templates.



#### Why Should You Create a ClickUp Process Library?

I'll be honest, the biggest limitation to the ClickUp *Template Center* is the inability to edit templates directly in the *Template Center*. Once a *Template* is saved, you cannot edit it unless you have the source file for that template built somewhere in ClickUp - hence the reason for the "Process Library". Having these *Template* source files on hand makes updating and maintaining *Templates* easy.

Your *Templates* should never be static. You'll be updating regularly. If you're brand new to ClickUp, or just new to using *Templates*, this might not mean much right now, but when you have 20, 50, or 100+ *Templates*, you'll realize why I'm telling you to build this out now. Overall, invest time upfront to build your dedicated "Process Library".

# Ҳ zenpilot

#### How Should Your Process Library Be Structured?

Your "Process Library" should contain a logical Folder structure to organize your process Templates. We suggest your Templates are organized by department, work category, and Template type (similar to how your ClickUp Hierarchy is organized):

- Space: Process Library
  - Folder: Delivery Task Templates
  - Folder: Delivery List Templates
  - Folder: Growth Task Templates
  - Folder: Growth List Templates
  - Folder: Operations Task Templates
  - Folder: Operations List Templates
  - Folder: New Client Folder Template
  - Folder: View Templates
  - **Folder:** Document Templates



Then within those high level *Folders*, create additional organization based on work categories or service lines for your delivery focused *Templates*. It could be structured like this:

- Folder: Delivery Task Templates
  - List: SEO
  - List: ABM
  - List: Email
  - List: Account Management

Each one of these *Lists* would then host all of the deliverables related to that work category or service line. It could be structured like this:

- List: Email
  - Parent Task: Newsletter
  - Parent Task: Drip Campaign
  - Parent Task: Promotional Email



Each of these would contain the Subtasks needed to complete that deliverable.



### 2. Prioritize Your Processes First

Again, before you even jump in to ClickUp, I would spend some time prioritizing what processes you actually need to build. You can't build everything at once, so you'll need to prioritize what get's built first, and then build that in ClickUp.

If you're a marketing agency, you'll probably need a process for client onboarding, writing blog posts, building website, sending emails, etc. Additionally, you'll need processes for employee onboarding, recruiting, payroll, taxes, financial planning, etc.

We've walked over 3,000 teams through this process. And to do that, we leverage a **Process Prioritization Worksheet** which helps teams brain dump and prioritize all of the processes they need to build out in ClickUp.

DELIVERABLES & PROJECTS		Ŧ	SERVICE LINE		POINT PERSON 👳	FREQUENCY	Ŧ	DOCUMENTATION NEEDS	₹	PAIN	₹	SCORE	Ŧ
Facebook Ad Campaign Audit	Deliverable	*	Paid Social	Ŧ	Karen	5	•	4	Ŧ	5	Ŧ	14	
Create Client Brand Style Guide	Deliverable	*	Branding	÷	Bob	5	*	5	*	4	*	14	
Complete Monthly ClickUp Analysis	Deliverable	-	Internal Operations	-	Bob	4	Ŧ	5	-	4	-	13	
Blog Post	Deliverable	•	Inbound Content	Ŧ	Scott	3	*	5	*	5	*	13	
Run Weekly NPS Enrollment Maintenance	Deliverable	-	Internal Operations	Ŧ	Mike	2	*	5	*	5	Ŧ	12	
Content Offer	Deliverable	-	Inbound Content	-	Mike	5	*	3	-	4	-	12	
Funnel Audit	Deliverable	•	Inbound Content	Ŧ	Karen	3	*	4	*	5	•	12	
SEO Audit	Deliverable	*	SEO	Ŧ	Mike	4	*	3	*	5	•	12	
Build & Launch Initial Campaigns	Deliverable	*	Paid Social	÷	Mike	5	*	5	*	2	-	12	
Monthly Reporting Setup	Deliverable	•	Review & Strategy*	Ŧ	Mike	2	*	5	*	4	•	11	
Complete Monthly Strategy Meeting	Deliverable	*	Review & Strategy*	Ŧ	Bob	5	*	3	*	3	•	11	
Webinar	Deliverable	-	Inbound Content	Ŧ	Mike	4	*	4	-	3	-	11	
Website Design	Project	•	Web	Ŧ	Mike	4	*	4	*	2	•	10	
Storybrand	Project	•	Branding	Ŧ	Bob	4	*	4	*	2	*	10	
Complete Pre-Launch Audits & Planning	Deliverable	*	Paid Search	Ŧ	Mike	1	Ŧ	4	*	5	-	10	
Complete Weekly Review & Strategy Call	Deliverable	*	Review & Strategy*	÷	Karen	2	*	4	*	3	-	9	
Campaign Strategy	Deliverable	+	Review & Strategy*	Ŧ	Mike	3	*	4	*	2	-	9	
Complete Weekly ClickUp Roundup	Deliverable	*	Internal Operations	-	Karen	2	*	5	*	2	*	9	

Overall, the process of prioritizing process building is relatively easy.

Gather your leadership team in a room (or virtual call for my virtual teams!), brain dump everything you do as a business, and then priroitize those processes based on how often it's performed, how little documentation you currently have on that process, and how painful it currently is without a documented process. You'll then rank all of those processes and determine which one(s) are needed to build now and who is in charge of building it!



### 3. Use Folder, List, and Task Templates for Your Processes

After you've prioritized your processes, you can now start to build these in ClickUp. You'll be using your new "Process Library" Space for this!

Folder, List, and Task Templates are the most common ClickUp Templates that you'll use. Yes, you can use a Space Template if you want to (especially in the very beginning), but Folder, List, and Task Templates will be leveraged the most.

#### Here's how they'll work:

- Task Templates will be used for deliverables blog posts, meetings, financial reports, audits, etc.
- List Templates will be used for projects website builds, implementations, etc.
- Folder Templates will be used mostly for client service teams because they can be leveraged to templatize your client folder structures (as discussed in our *Hierarchy* conversation).

Follow the Parent Task and Subtask structure we discussed earlier.

Name		Due date ↑	Time estimate	🚖 Task Type	🚖 Delivery Role	🖕 Work Category
• •	Client Onboarding % 15 🛆	6/30/21	🛛 5h 35m	► Non-Action	-	Account Manage
	© Client Onboarding     Close Client Deal in CRM & Announce Client in Slack = ≅ 0/3 △	6/24/21	∑ 5m	✓ Actionable	Sales	Account Manage
	Client Onboarding Create Handoff Plan with Head of Client Service = $\equiv 0/3 \triangle$	6/25/21	∑ 30m	Actionable	Sales	Account Manage
	Client Onboarding Send Welcome Email Introducing Client to Strategist $\equiv \equiv 0/4$	6/25/21	∑ 5m	Actionable	Sales	Account Manage
	Ilient Onboarding Reply to Welcome Email & Send Intake Form $\equiv \equiv 0/6$	6/25/21	∑ 5m	Actionable	Strategist	Account Manage
	$\textcircled{O}$ Client Onboarding Create shared Google Drive and add internal and external contacts = $\Xi$ 0/3 $\bigtriangleup$	6/25/21	∑ 15m	Actionable	Strategist	Account Manage
	$\textcircled{\ } \mathbb{O}  \overset{Client \ Onboarding}{\textbf{Send New Client Handwritten Welcome Note}} \ \equiv \ \Xi \ 0/3 \ \bigtriangleup$	6/26/21	∑ 10m	Actionable	Strategist	Account Manage
	Client Onboarding Create Internal Slack Channel and Add Team Members $\equiv \equiv 0/4$	6/25/21	∑ 5m	Actionable	Strategist	Account Manage
	© Client Onboarding     Double-Check Onboarding Details & Kickoff Call Confirmation ≡ 0/8 △	6/27/21	∑ 5m	Actionable	Admin	Account Manage
	$ \widehat{ \ } \  \  \  \  \  \  \  \  \  \  \  \ $	6/28/21	∑ 5m	Actionable	Strategist	Account Manage
	$\textcircled{\ } \mathbb{O}  \  \  \  \  \  \  \  \  \  \  \  \  \$	6/28/21	∑ 5m	Actionable	Strategist	Account Manage
	$  \begin{tabular}{lllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$	6/29/21	∑ 1h	17 Meeting	Strategist	Account Manage
	$\textcircled{\ } \mathbb{O}  \begin{array}{l} \mbox{Client Onboarding} \\ \mbox{Attend Kickoff Call} \ \equiv \ \equiv \ 0/4 \ \bigtriangleup \end{array}$	6/29/21	<u>Ⅹ</u> 1h	17 Meeting	Admin	Account Manage
	Client Onboarding     Attend Kickoff Call ≡ 至 0/4 ∧	6/29/21	<u>⊠</u> 1h	17 Meeting	Sales	Account Manage

Each *Parent Task* should represent a deliverable or project phases and all the *Subtasks* will represent the steps needed to complete that deliverable or project phase.



#### Task Template Example

Task Templates will be the most used Template for 95% of teams. Task Templates will be like "tools in your toolbox". You'll use these Templates over and over and over again.

Let's walk through building out a polished *Task Template* using a common example - blog posts.

Inside your "Process Library" Space, within the "Delivery - Task Templates" Folder and "Inbound" List, we'll create a Parent Task called "Blog Post" with Subtasks, Due Dates, Time Estimates, and Custom Fields (which we'll discuss in more detail later):

- Subtasks: As we discussed, these represent the actionable *Tasks* that are needed to complete a blog post - create blog strategy, write blog, proof blog, send blog to client, receive feedback + make adjustments, publish blog, etc.
- Due Dates: Due Dates in your Templates represent a date map. You should only care about the distance between each of the dates not the actual date itself. Pick a date for your first Task and then work from there. You can remap these due dates when you deploy the Template.
- Time Estimates: Time Estimates are what they sound like. How long do you think each task should take? We recommend that each of your Tasks is broken up in to Tasks that take no longer than 4 hours. This will help you get a much more accurate Workload View in ClickUp.
- **Dependencies:** Link your *Tasks* together in the *Gantt View* for easy date remapping in the future.
- Checklists: Add Checklists to your Subtasks to provide reminders for your team to ensure they don't forget to do certain things related to a *Task*.
- Additional Custom Fields: Add in Custom Fields that you want included in your Templates (we will discuss this later).

Overall, your *Templates* should be built with the mindset that each *Task* will be assigned to one person. Additionally, for best results, each *Task* should be able to be completed by that one person in one sitting and *Due Dates* should be "Do" dates (what day the *Task* should be started and completed on).

When your *Tasks* are broken up in to smaller "bite-sized" pieces, you'll provide more clarity for your team, get a better view in to project progress, get better time tracking data, and make it much easier to see workload.



#### List Template Example

List Templates will be the second most used Template for teams in Clickup. List Templates make it much easier for project managers to set up and assign out larger projects like website redesigns, client onboardings, implementations, etc.

In this example, let's build out a multi-phase website redesign *List Template*. Your *List Templates* will act slightly different than your *Task Templates*. For starters, *Parent Tasks* will operate slightly different. In a *List Template*, *Parent Tasks* represent milestones or phases within a project, instead of a single deliverable.

You'd build this *Template* in your "Process Library" *Space*, within the "Delivery - List Templates" *Folder*.

Within a website redesign, your Parent Tasks may be "Research & Discovery", "Wireframes & Protyping", "Content", "Design", "Deverlopment", "Launch", "Post Launch". Within each of the Parent Tasks will live more granular Subtasks like "Conducting Customer Interview", "Writing Website Copy", "Presenting Design Concepts", "Migrating Custom Functions", etc. (just like your Task Templates).

FAVORITES Overall Workload Assigne	ee Date	e Remap Account Health Client View	🗾 Contracts Dashb	oard 🛛 📀 Time F	Reporting - Task	: Visibi 🧯 Cli	ent Overview Exa	mple [F	Process Library G
🥸 GuavaBox 🗸 🔳	ZenPilot	Template Library / 🗅 📍 ZP Library   Deliver	ry - List Templates,	/ ≡ Website Red	lesign   Phase				
Spaces	🗄 🔽 Tasks	s 🎽 🕃 Date Rescheduling 🚊 Dependen	cy Map 🕴 + View	1					Q Search
🗮 Brand Redesign 5	- Overdu								
🗮 Campaign Design 5	Name							Time tracked	🛨 Work Catebr
😑 Client Onboarding 3									
🗮 HubSpot Implement 6		Research & Discovery 🕲 18 🛆	TO DO			1/25/22	∦ 12h 30m	0:00:00	Wei
🗮 HubSpot Setup 9		Website Redesign   Phase Wireframes & Prototyping 🗞 15 🛆	TO DO				🛛 14h 55m	0:00:00	Wel
SEO Audit/Strategy 12		Website Redesign   Phase	TO DO				🛛 1h 10m	0:00:00	Wel
E Sales Hub Impleme 8		Website Redesign   Phase							
Snopity website De 7	->	Design 🗞 25 🛦				4/1/22	8 30h 55m	0:00:00	wei
Video Production 3		Website Redesign   Phase Development % 32 🛆	TO DO				🛛 43h 50m	0:00:00	Wet
i≡ Website Redesign   14		Website Redesign   Phase Launch 🗞 3 🛆	TO DO				🛛 1h 55m	•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	Wet
🔲 Website Redesign   🚳 💷 💶 🥌						4129122	펑 10m	0:00:00	Wal
🗮 Wordpress Website 11		Receive approval for launch from 4							
ZP Library   Growth - T		ZenPilot Template Library / † ZP Library	💿 то ро				🛛 1h 30m	• 0:00:00	Wet
P ZP Library   Operation		Run development launch ta = 0/8 2							
<ul> <li>P Library   Operation</li> <li>P Library   New Clien</li> </ul>		Launch     Notify client of launch and launch 4	TO DO				🛛 15m	0:00:00	Wet
H View all Spaces		Website Redesign   Phase	I TO DO				🛛 6h 15m	• 0:00:00	Wel
+ Create Space		ZenPilot Template Library / 📍 ZP Library		0	0+	EIDIDD	U 45m	••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	

Additionally, your List Template can include additional List Settings that an ordinary Task Template does not bring with it. This will include things like Views, Automations, and Documents!

# Ҳ zenpilot

#### Folder Template Example

Folder Templates are the homes where your List and Task Templates (at least for client service businesses) will actually be deployed in and live.

Folder Templates help streamline client onboarding, improve team ClickUp usage, and help you centralize client data. If you're both a ClickUp and HubSpot user, you'll want to check out our article (+ video tutorial), "How to Streamline Client Onboarding With the ClickUp + HubSpot Integration".

Overall, setting up Folder Templates will be less about the Tasks, and more about the structure of your Folders. Here's how you'll set it up:

- Client Folder Template [Folder]: You'll begin with the client Folder. This Folder will have a few Views and Documents.
  - Onboarding [List]: You'll build your client onboarding process directly in to your Folder
     Template. This will be a List with all of the Tasks needed to onboard a new client. When a client is onboarded, this List can be archived.
  - Contract XY List [List]: You'll build an empty List that will serve as a home for all of your Tasks. This List will be renamed to reflect the name of your contract with the client. All work for this contract will live in this List for easy time tracking and updates. You'll also leverage similar Views to those at the Folder level and build them in to this List.
  - Account Management [List]: You can build an empty List that will serve as a home for all of your account management related Tasks. These can be Tasks associated with the client, but not a particular contract or project. Similar to the Contract List, you'll leverage similar Views to those at the Folder level and build them in to this list.





### 4. Make the Process Live Where the Work Get's Done

After you've built a few *Templates* in ClickUp, it's time to take these to the next level.

You can start by building your ClickUp *Templates* with the *Task Names*, *Due Dates*, *Time Estimates*, and *Dependencies*, but you'll unlock even more productivity gains when you combine your processes with those tasks.

If you've created SOPs or have any documentation on how your business does things, use the *Task* Description feature to link out to that SOP document, video tutorial, or template. Or, you can use the *Task* Description to write out instructions for how to complete that specific *Task*.

	1		Send Welcome Email Introducing Client to Strategist		
Name	Due date	Time estima	Status         Assigned to         Due Date           To Do         P         6/25/21		
▼      Client Onboarding % 15 △	6/30/21	🛛 5h 35m	Estimate Relationships		
Client Onboarding     Close Client Deal in CRM & Announce Client in Slack = ≅ 0/3 ▲	6/24/21	∑ 5m	5m O 1 Blocking △1 Walting on		
Client Onboarding Create Handoff Plan with Head of Client Service = $\equiv 0/3 \Delta$	6/25/21	X 30m	When you know who will be the lead Strategist working with the client you're free to send the underse email. Outperies the template below when making you're tradication		
© Client Onboarding Send Welcome Email Introducing Client to Strategist ≡ ≡ 0/4 ▲  C ~ ~	6/25/21	∑ 5m	the vercome email. Customize the template below when making your introduction.		
Client Onboarding Reply to Welcome Email & Send Intake Form ≡ Ξ 0/6 △	6/25/21	∑ 5m	Hey ((name)),		
I Client Onboarding Create shared Google Drive and add internal and external contacts $= \pm$ 0/3 $\triangle$	6/25/21	ISm 15m	Welcome aboard! Thanks for signing the contract and completing the kickoff payment. I'd like to introduce you to {{strategist name}}. They'll be your leader and main point of contact.		
Client Onboarding Send New Client Handwritten Welcome Note = $\equiv 0/3 \triangle$	6/26/21	Ⅰ 10m	They'll also be following up to schedule a time to meet and share our onboarding intake		
Client Onboarding Create Internal Slack Channel and Add Team Members $\equiv \pm 0/4$	6/25/21	∑ 5m	I'll pass it over to you {{strategist name}} to say hello.		
Client Onboarding     Double-Check Onboarding Details & Kickoff Call Confirmation ≡ 0/8 △	6/27/21	∑ 5m	Looking forward to working together!		
$ \widehat{\bullet}  \begin{array}{l} \text{Client Onboarding} \\ \text{Add Client Contacts to Retently} = \Xi 0/5 \ \triangle \end{array} $	6/28/21	<u>X</u> 5m	Actionable Strategist Account Manage		
Client Onboarding Confirm Login Credentials & Access to Client Platforms = ≅ 0/3 △	6/28/21	<u>⊠</u> 5m	Actionable Strategist Account Manage		
Client Onboarding Run Kickoff Call $\equiv \equiv 0/4 \triangle$	6/29/21	∐ 1h	Meeting     Strategist     Account Manage		
Client Onboarding Attend Kickoff Call ≡ ≅ 0/4 △	6/29/21	∐ 1h	Meeting Admin Account Manage		
Client Onboarding ▲ttend Kickoff Call ≡ = □/A ▲	6/29/21	<u>ਸ਼</u> 1h	📅 Meeting Sales Account Manage		

When your processes are combined with the Tasks, your teams compliance rate for actually following that process will go through the roof.

I'd even recommend you build an Internal Wiki or Knowledgebase directly in ClickUp. This can store all of your SOPs and process documentation - keeping everything in one system. For a detail tutorial on how to build this in ClickUp, check out our article and video, "**How to Create an Internal Wiki in ClickUp**".



### 5. Leverage View Templates for Standardization

Views can be included within your List, Folder, and Space Templates, but they can also be saved on their own.

And though we haven't yet discussed Views (that's coming soon), you'll want to leverage View Templates to help you standardize Views in your Workspace to make it easier for your team to navigate and understand ClickUp. Views are powerful, but can be difficult to comprehend. Leveraging View Templates to standardize is extremely helpful to make your Workspace a tad bit simpler.

#### 6. Leverage Doc Templates for Meeting Agendas

Last but not least are *Doc Templates*. *Doc Templates* can also be saved with *Space*, *Folder*, or *List Templates*, but they can also be saved on their own in ClickUp.

We use them primarily for meeting agendas. ClickUp can be used to run your meetings, save all of your notes, and create *Tasks* directly from your notes (which is amazing - just highlight text in a *Doc* and click "+ Task")

For example, If you're a business that runs on EOS (the Entrepreneurial Operating System®), you can run your Level 10 Meetings™ directly in ClickUp - and you'll leverage a ClickUp Doc Template to deploy the agenda every week!





# The Power of ClickUp Templates

ClickUp Templates can bring as much or as little detail as you want. As you saw in my recommendations, you can bring Task Descriptions, Checklists, Time Estimates, Due Dates, Custom Fields, Dependencies, Views, and more with Templates.

Obviously your *Templates* don't need to be perfect to start, but as you add in more and more detail, you'll be creating extremely powerful assets to help you plan out projects without having to build them from scratch.

If you have all of the details, especially those *Task Descriptions* built out, you'll be able to include the "How To" instructions to every task that's deployed - making it 10x easier to bring on a new employee and scale your business.

"Our team is more efficient, productive, and healthier. I was always wary of how much of our work could be put into processes, but this has completely changed my mind. If you want to take your business to the next level, ZenPilot is a must!"



Kyle Harms CEO, Hot Sauce

There's a ton of power in ClickUp *Templates*. Create them. Save them. Deploy them into your live work environment. And reap the benefits.

"The framework for setting up our processes and executing them was phenomenal. This was the missing piece. Yes, ClickUp provided the technology, but we had never sat down and written out our processes step-by-step. The process that ZenPilot provided for process building was a game changer for us."

#### Matt Guevara Founder, Venn Digital Marketing





# **Step 8: Leveraging Custom Fields**

Custom Fields can be dangerous in ClickUp. Depending on your personality type, you may go and create hundreds of different Custom Fields because you'll think you'll need them. But the reality is, you probably don't.

Creating hundreds of different *Custom Fields* in your ClickUp *Workspace* (without understanding how they work and where they live) can lead to some nightmares down the road. This *Custom Field* craziness will make it much harder to create *Dashboards* and *Views*. Plus, your team may get confused to which *Custom Fields* they should and shouldn't be using.

	٩	Search	жк 💿 А	1			⊙ New 🛛 🗢 💠 🖗
Process Library 3.0	) / 🗅 📍 ZP   Delivery - Task Templates / ≡ Inbou	nd					Share Automations ~ Q
i≣ To Dos 🗄 Temp	olate View 🚊 Dependency Map 🚊 Date Remap	Inbound Docs	+ View		Q Sea	rch 🛱 Hide	🕸 Customize 🛛 🗛 🗸 🗸
Group: Due date	९₀ Subtasks: Collapse all च Filters २ Me mode	AR Assignees Show	closed Hide				Search tasks
▼ Overdue 16 ····	+ Add Task						
Name		Due date 🕥	Time estimate	🚖 Delivery Role	🚖 Task Type	🖕 Work Catego	ry 🛞
💌 🖲 Blog ک	a 16 🛆	May 3	🗵 8h 40m	-	Non-Ac	Inbound	
Sche	edule blog interview or send interview guide to cli		<u></u> 1011	otrategist	, lotiona	linboaria	Show/Hide New Column
Blog Com	nplete blog interview with client 🛆	Apr 26	🛛 30m	Copywriter	Actiona	Inbound	Q Search
Blog Write	te blog copy 🛆	Apr 26	🛛 2h 30m	Copywriter		- Id	CREATE NEW FIELD
Blog Proc	of blog copy 🛆	Apr 26	🛛 15m	Proofer		d	Dropdown
Blog Appl	ly blog proofing revisions 🛆	Apr 26	⊠ 15m	Copywriter	Use dropdowns to consistent options colors!	give s - even use id	T Text œD Text area Try Fill with AI ↔
Blog Desi	ign blog imagery 😑 🛆	Apr 26	区 1h	Designer	✓ Actiona	Inbound	🗇 Date
Blog Com	nplete internal review of blog copy and design 🛆	Apr 26	⊠ 15m	Senior Strategist	✓ Actiona	Inbound	Progress (Auto)
Blog Send	d blog to client for their review 🛆	Apr 26	⊠ 15m	Strategist	✓ Actiona	Inbound	# Number
Blog Post	t client feedback of the blog to the next step $ riangle$	Apr 28	⊠ 15m	Strategist	✓ Actiona	Inbound	🖸 Email
Blog App	ly client copy revisions to blog 🛆	May 1	⊠ 30m	Copywriter	✓ Actiona	Inbound	Files     Formula
	ly client design revisions to blog 🛆	May 1	⊠ 30m	Designer	✓ Actiona	Inbound	S Labels
Blog Prod	duce blog in Client CMS 🛆	May 2	⊠ 15m	Copywriter	✓ Actiona	Inbound	Location     Use existing field
Blog     Cont	firm client approval of blog 🛆	May 3	∑ 15m	Strategist	✓ Actiona	Inbound	···
Blog Sche	edule blog publish date 🛆	May 3	⊠ 10m	Copywriter	Actiona	Inbound	

Yes, *Custom Fields* are powerful, but you need to build them with a purpose. This is another reason for having a strategy before going in to your ClickUp implementation.

You'll want to have your *Custom Fields* listed out with how they'll be used before you jump in to ClickUp. This doesn't mean you can't create additional *Fields* later on, but get the basics created first. In a few pages, I'll be sharing a few *Custom Fields* we recommend you create right away.



# What Are ClickUp Custom Fields?

Simply put, *Custom Fields* in ClickUp are ways of adding different types of data or unique identifiers on to your ClickUp *Tasks* to customize and personlize your *Workspace*.

- 1. They allow you to segment data for Views and Dashboards
- 2. They allow you to add more information to your Tasks
- 3. And they provide you with Automation capabilities (mainly because they can act as triggers!)

verview = Account Manager - Steve	🗄 🚖 Overdue Tasks 🛽 🛩 🛛 12 more	+ View	Q Search <b>≅ Hide · 2</b>	段 Customize	Add Task 🗸 🗸
oup: 😭 Client 📞 Subtasks: Collapse all	₹ 2 Filtε × A Me mode A Assignee	s Show closed Hide		Search ta	asks
Shrute Farms 2 … + Add Task	Filters ©		Clear all Save	d filters ╰	
Name  Image: Name I	Where 🙀 Account Man 🗸	ls v	Steve	✓ Ū	Summary + No updates in the
Blog] The Battle of Schrute Farm	AND 🗸 🙀 Task Type 🗸	Is not 🗸	Record	✓ 道	No updates in the
+ Add Task					
Dunder Mifflin 7 … + Add Task Name	+ Add filter + Add group	Due date (	↑ Time tracked	Time estima	Summary 🔶

### Where Are Custom Fields Located?

This is important. Custom Fields can live at any level of your ClickUp Hierarchy.

To add a Custom Field, you can either navigate to your Custom Field Manager, which you'll find in your Quick Actions Menu in the top right corner of your screen. Or you can go to any View in your Workspace and click on the "+/Add a Column" button that'll you'll see on the right side of your View.

Be careful. If you click "+/Add a Column" at your Everything/Workspace level, you will be adding a Custom Field to your entire Workspace - meaning that every Task in your ClickUp Workspace will now have that Custom Field applied to it.

You don't typically want this. It may not mean as much to you right now, but as you build more advanced solutions in ClickUp (like a CRM), you don't want *Custom Fields* you're using for your Growth team to live on those records living in your CRM.

Keep your Custom Fields located no higher than your Spaces. If you want to add a Custom Field to a Space, just navigate to that Space, pull up a View, press the "+/Add a Column" button and add a new Field here. This will allow you to use the Custom Field on every task in that Space.

# Ҳ zenpilot

# Why Do Custom Fields Matter?

Custom Fields are what will unlock future custom Views and Dashboards in the future.

For example, we use a "Role" *Dropdown Custom Field*. This is built in to our *Templates* in the "Process Library" *Space*. This field will be populated with different roles that our team has - copywriter, admin, proofer, strategist, account manager, designer, engineer, etc.

Every Task in our ClickUp Templates will then get this Custom Field applied to it. When the Template is deployed, we can group all of the Tasks that have the "Copywriter" role applied to it, and assign those Tasks in bulk (using the Bulk Action Toolbar).

21 tasks selected		⊕₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽	y to clipboa
🔀 Duck Duck Grow 🗸	Delivery [DEMO] / 🗅 Scl Q Search	< DISMISS	
I Dashboards	踞 Overview 1을 Schrute F 🙂 Unassign	E Progress View	h ≢ Hi
전 Whiteboards ···· More	Server Content of Cont	R, Me mode (R Assignees) (O Show closed) Hide	
Favorites >	▶ Strategist 16 ··· 😥 Me		
Spaces	Copywriter 21 ··· + Andrew Dymski Profile S.		
Shared with me	Ciro Campos	Due d 🕥 Time estim Time tracked Comments 👷 Delivery Role 🤕	)
* Everything	Retainer XYZ Blog Post C Write blog o Gray MacKenzie	3/8/24 🗵 1h ● 0:00:00 Q Copywriter ···	
S Operations [DEMO]	Retainer XYZ		
Delivery [DEMO]     Schrute Farms +	Blog Post °o Complete bl Send notifications	3/12/24 🛛 30m ● 0:00:00 🔾 Copywriter ···	
Retainer XYZ 5	Retainer XYZ  Blog Post  Mrite blog conv	3/14/24 🗵 2h 30m <b>O</b> 0:00:00 ◯ Copywriter ···	
E Review & Strategy 2	Betainer VVZ		
≅ Schrute Farms <> ZenPilot	<ul> <li>✓ ● Blog Post</li> <li>♦ Apply blog proofing revisions △</li> </ul>	3/19/24 🛛 15m 💿 0:00:00 🔾 Copywriter ···	
Dunder Mittin     Michael Contt Donor Co.	Retainer XYZ  VCS - Schrute Farms	3/22/24	
Vance Refrigeration	$\%$ Write blog outline / interview $\equiv$ 0/2 $\land$		
Athlead	Retainer XYZ VCS - Schrute Farms Complete blog interview with client	3/26/24 🗵 30m • 0:00:00 ◯ Copywriter ···	
Serenity by Jan	Retainer XYZ		
🗅 LaVerne's Pies	VCS - Schrute Farms % Write blog copy 🛆	3/28/24 🛛 2h 30m ● 0:00:00 🔾 Copywriter ···	
Elient Management	<ul> <li>Retainer XYZ</li> <li>Blog Post</li> <li>% Apply client copy revisions to blog △</li> </ul>	3/29/24 🛛 30m • 0:00:00 ◯ Copywriter ···	
O Undo	Retainer XYZ		

This process saves us a few minutes on the Task deployment process. And as you scale, this can save days, if not weeks, of admin time per year!

For an overview of how this process works, watch our video tutorial, "The Fastest Way to Assign Work in ClickUp".



Secondly, we also leverage an "Account Manager" Dropdown Custom Field.

This *Field* can be applied to every task that falls within that account manager's book of business. An account manager may have 10 different clients. Within each of these clients, they have 4-5 different deliverables being worked on, and each client has a team of 5 people.

If an account manager wants to see all of the work across those 10 different clients in one place, you can create a *View* that shows all *Tasks* that have that *Custom Field* applied to it. Instead of that account manager having to navigate through a bunch of folders and lists in ClickUp, they'll have one *View* where all of this is showing.

		,	Filters ®					Clear all Saved filters 🗸
} Overvie	w <sup>*</sup> t≡ <sub>e</sub> Account Manager - Steve t≣ ☆ Overdu	e Tasks 🛛 🗮 🖕 No Assignee	Accoun	it Manager ∨	Steve			
i Group: 😭	Client Clubasks: Collapse all	R, Me_mode R, Assignees 🤅	+ Add filter	+ Add gro	pup			
Name		Status	Assignee	Due date	Time tracked	Time estim	Comments	🚖 Progress
•	[Meta Campaign] Airbnb - Shrute Farms	O IN CLIENT REVIEW	R+	Sep 12	0 15:00:00	∐ 18h 30	Q 1	_
• •	[Blog] The Battle of Schrute Farms $(3, 17)$		<u>8</u> +	Sep 27	0 10:00:00	<u>X</u> 9h	Q	
+	New task							
Dunder	Mifflin 5 ···· +							
Name		Status	Assignee	Due date	Time tracked	Time estim	Comments	🚖 Progress
• 🕑	Paper 101 Blog 😢 5 🗸 🖉 🖉	O IN CLIENT REVIEW	R+	Oct 25	16:00:00	🛛 8h 45m	Q 4	
	$\bigcirc$ Post client feedback of the blog to the next step $~\ominus$	O TO DO	9	Oct 16	0:00:00	IST 15m	Q	
	$\bigcirc$ Apply client copy revisions to blog $\land$	O TO DO	•	Oct 13	• 0:30:00	区 30m	Q	
	$\bigcirc$ Apply client design revisions to blog $\triangle$	O TO DO	0	Oct 18	• 0:30:00	∑ 30m	Q	C
	○ Produce blog in Client CMS	O to do	9	Oct 18	• 0:00:00	∐ 15m	Q	
	Schedule blog publish date 😑	O TO DO	9	Oct 18	0:00:00	⊠ 15m	Q	
	÷							
► ()	Podcast 🔯 10 🗸 🛆	O TO DO	<u></u> #	Oct 25	8:00:00	∑ 6h	Q	

This is why your Clickup *Hierarchy* is so important. The way you design your *Hierarchy* in ClickUp will either enable or limit your ability to create *Views* or *Dashboards* just like this.

And aside from the *Hierarchy*, this is why I'd limit your *Custom Field* usage. When you have too many *Custom Fields* in your *Workspace* it becomes difficult to manage and keep organized for *Views*. Keep it simple so that you and your team don't get overwhelmed.



### **Custom Field Recommendations**

I'd recommend you have at least three different *Custom Fields* to start, and then don't create any more until you're ready:

- 1. Role (or Delivery Role): This is a *Dropdown Custom Field* that is used to assign work and make hiring decisions. Populate this *Field* with roles your business has. Every task should have a "Role" *Custom Field* applied to it.
- 2. Work Category: This is another *Dropdown Custom Field* that is used to label work categories across your business. This is great for future reporting to see which services are most profitable for your business, or where you're spending the most time.
- 3. Task Type: This is another *Dropdown Custom Field* that helps you label your *Task Types* in ClickUp. Not every *Task* is a traditional *Task*. You may have some records, non-actionable tasks, meeting tasks, etc. that you'll want to have properly labeled. And yes, I do understand that ClickUp now has a native *Task Type* option, but at the moment this has some *API* and *Automation* limitations.

These are the most basic *Fields* that can be recommended to basically any business using ClickUp. The "Account Manager" *Dropdown Custom Field* I mentioned earlier is a great addition, but even that is a bit advanced for your beginning ClickUp implementation.

Again, always go in with a strategy before using ClickUp. You'll want to know your *Hierarchy*, but you'll also want to have an idea for *Custom Fields* that you can apply to your *Tasks* to unlock visibility and reporting capabilities in the future. For example, you can use *Custom Fields* I recommended to create dashboards like this (screenshot below) that can track profitability and utilization.



And if you're unsure about what *Custom Fields* you should create and leverage, or you want help creating dashboards like the one pictured above, **book a call with my team**.



# Step 9: Leveraging ClickUp Views

ClickUp Views could be discussed directly after the ClickUp Hierarchy. They are one of the most important features within ClickUp. However, it's important that you understand the ClickUp Hierarchy, Custom Fields, and Templates first (mainly because now you know that you can turn your Views in to Templates).

<b>¢</b>			Q Search #K	⊙ New   🥥 🗰 🤮
Dunder Mifflin ~	Everything			Share
<ul> <li>▶ Dunder Mifflin ~</li> <li>A Home</li> <li>Inbox</li> <li>Docs</li> <li>Dashboards</li> <li>Whiteboards</li> <li>Whiteboards</li> <li>More</li> <li>Favorites &gt;</li> <li>Spaces</li> <li>X Everything</li> <li>X view all Spaces</li> <li>+ Create Space</li> </ul>	Everything	E Enter name TASKS E Lot D Board Calendar E Gantt Timeline S Team E Table A Mind Map C Workload A Activity O Map PACES	List         Use List view to organize your tasks in anyway imaginable - sort, filter, group, and customize columns.         Private view       Pin view       Add List	Share Q Search T Hide @ Customize Add Task ~ ~
		ピ Whiteboard 自 Doc		

Most teams will start by setting up a bunch of random *Views* in their *Workspace*. This is fine, but as you build and build in ClickUp, an overabundance of *Views* with no distinct purpose can overcrowd your *Workspace* and lead to confusion across your team (trust me, I've seen it 100 times).

And confusion isn't going to help get your team bought in to the platform. This is a big reason why teams fail to successfully implement ClickUp.

We'd recommend only building the Views you need, and standardizing them across your Workspace. This is exactly why you need to know about View Templates. Plus, you can build Views in to your Space, Folder, and List Templates. This will save you hours (maybe months) of hard work and headaches if you get your desired Views built in to your Templates. That way you don't have to go and set up every View from scratch!

If you're looking for a more thorough guide on *Views*, I recommend you read our article (+ video tutorial), **"Everything You Need to Know About ClickUp Views"**. But since you're here and reading this guide, let me give you a few pointers...



# Tip #1 - Public vs. Private Views

This may not be a tip as much as it is a warning. When *Views* are created, they'll be set as public, unless you choose to make them private (or if you have the *Default Private Views ClickApp* turned on then just disregard that).

If a *View* is public, this means that everyone in your ClickUp *Workspace* will see this *View*, and can make changes to this *View*. If a change is made to the *View*, everyone will see the changes. This isn't a huge deal unless you have a bunch of brand new ClickUppers who have no idea how *Views* work.

If you do have a bunch of brand new ClickUppers and want to restrict people from changing or editing a View, you can click on that View, select More settings and toggle on Protect view. This will restrict anyone from editing your beautiful Views you created and keep your Workspace in check.

If a View is private, this means that only you can see it. You'll know it's a private View when it has a little "Lock icon" next to the View. You can edit, change, and adjust this View without anyone else seeing the changes.

	Private	View
Space	盟 Overview ੈ∃ ᢒ	List = List
꿤 Overview  🗄 🖯 List 📲	List D Board + View	
월 Group: Status	Collapse all = Filters & Me mode & Assignees @	Show closed Hide
Folder / List		MORE SETTINGS View defaults
✓ List …		Autosave view
• • TO DO 1 ···· +	Add Task	Protect view
Name		Private view
🔻 🔘 Parent Task 🕅	. 2	☆ Default for everyone
		A Default to Me Mode 🔾
		() Reset view to defaults
		↓ Export view



# Tip #2 - Identify Roles Before Creating Views

When you're creating *Views*, you need to go in with some sort of strategy (I know I've said this 1 million times). Think about the main roles within your business. This will vary by business type and size, **but for most businesses this will include 5 main roles:** 

- 1. Individual Contributors: Need to know what's on their agenda and what they need to prioritize.
- 2. Account Managers (or Team Leads): Need to see how their clients projects are progressing, how the contract is pacing, what the results are, and what they need to discuss at their meetings.
- 3. Project Managers: Need to see team workload (with ClickUp's *Workload View*) and be able to easily reassign and remap due dates if necessary, while also keeping ClickUp up-to-date.
- 4. Leadership: Need visibility into client health, team health, and overall agency health (profitability, workload, utilization, etc.)
- 5. Clients: Need to know what's happening, what's completed, and what the results are.



When you identify these roles before creating *Views*, you'll be able to ask your team sitting in those roles, "what do you need to see and why?". You can then build *Views* around those answers and create specific *Views* for specific people.

Plus, when you start thinking about how you can create those Views, you'll begin to think about how it relates to your ClickUp Hierarchy, and you'll start identifying Custom Fields that can be used to segment certain Tasks to give your roles a View that shows them only what they need to see. The strategy will help bring it all together so that everything you create has a purpose!



### Tip #3 - Use "Default for everyone" On Important Views

So, yes, it's important to keep your *Views* standardized and strategic, but, as you add more and more *Views* to your *Workspace*, it'll get a bit daunting and confusing. Each location can have 20+ *Views*!

Additionally, if a user goes to a certain location, there's no guarantee that they will see the *View* they were expecting to see. Someone on your team may navigate to one of your *Spaces* expecting to see something, but they may see something completely different! They may think they're in the wrong spot or some *Tasks* have dissapeared, but in reality its just because they are looking at a different *View*.

This can be troublesome for new users who aren't super familiar with the way ClickUp Views work. There are thousands of different combinations of View Types, Filters, Groupings, Columns, Settings, etc. that you can use to view information differently in ClickUp.

To help minimize some of this stress and ensure new users understands don't tink they're going crazy, you can use the *Default for everyone* feature in ClickUp. If there is one particular *View* that you want everyone to see when they click on to a *Space*, *Folder*, or *List*, the *Default for everyone* setting will force everyone to see a particular View when they navigate to that location.

To set this up, navigate to your View Options, select More Settings, and toggle on Default for everyone.

<b>•</b>			Q Search	жĸ	
Dunder Mifflin ~	Everything				
<ul> <li>Home</li> <li>Inbox</li> <li>Docs</li> <li>Dashboards</li> <li>Whiteboards</li> <li>More</li> </ul>	Haist D Board ⊖ Calendar + View	R, Me mode R Assignees	Show closed Hide		Q Search
Favorites > Spaces Everything Bit View all Spaces + Create Space	<ul> <li>Considered of the settings</li> <li>More settings</li> <li>More settings</li> <li>Autosave view</li> <li>Protect view</li> <li>Private view</li> <li>Default for everyone</li> <li>A Default to Me Mode</li> </ul>		This Folder is empty. Cr	eate a List to get started.	
	<ul> <li>⑦ Reset view to default</li> <li><u>±</u> Export view</li> </ul>	s >			

You also have the option to *Pin Views* which won't force everyone to look at that *View*, but it will push it to the front on your *View Menu*.



# Tip #4 - Four ClickUp Views You Absolutely Need

Now that we've gone through a few different tips on setting up *Views*, I want to provide you with a few *Views* that are non-negotiable. This list could obviously be a bit longer, but I'll narrow this down to four of my favorite (and most used) *Views* in ClickUp.

#### 1. "My Tasks" View

This is the most absolutely necessary *View* in all of ClickUp. This *View* should be built and customized for every person in your *Workspace*.

The "My Tasks" *View* is designed to create a single view of someones tasks. Everyone should start and end their day in this *View*. They shouldn't look anywhere else for their work. Everything will be funneled in to their "My Tasks" *View*. This *View* can be customized to everyones liking and be turned in to a Private *View* so only they can see it and access it.

#### Here's how to build the "My Tasks" View:

- 1. Navigate to the Everything level.
- 2. Create a new List View.
- 3. Group the Tasks by Due Date.
- 4. Subtasks should be shown as separate Tasks.
- 5. Filters should be set to only show Tasks assigned to you.
- 6. And you can add columns like Time Estimate, Time Tracked, Comments, Priority, and Due Date!

Ever	rything										
*=	∂ Mv Ta	asks <sup>¥</sup> Ξ OA View       Ξ No Assignee      Ξ No Time Estimates      Ξ	Closed w/o Tin	ne Tracke	Filters ©					Clear all Saved	filters
_	,				Assignee	~	ls ~	9		~	r D
	Group: D	ue date ( % Subtasks: As separate task ) ( = 3 Filters ) ( A Me mode	ନ୍ୟ Assignees	Ø Show							
Ŧ	Overdu	Je 4 … +			+ Add filter	+ Add gro	up				
	Name		Assignee	Due date	1	Time estimat	e Time	tracked	Comments	Total time	
	0	Delivery [DEMO] / Michael Scott Paper Co. / Inbound Blog Post % Write blog outline / interview guide a the second	9	3 days a	ago	II 1h	• 0:	00:00	Q	9 days	
	0	Delivery [DEMO] / Michael Scott Paper Co. / Inbound Blog Post % Complete blog interview with client 🔥	9	3 days a	ago	⊠ 30m	• 0	00:00	Q	9 days	
	0	Delivery [DEMO] / Michael Scott Paper Co. / Inbound Blog Post ℃ o Write blog copy △	9	3 days a	ago	🗏 2h 30m	• 0:	00:00	Q	9 days	
	0	Delivery [DEMO] / Michael Scott Paper Co. / Inbound Blog Post % Apply blog proofing revisions 🛆	9	3 days a	ago	🛛 15m	• 0:	00:00	Q	9 days	
	+	New task				4 h 15 m				0 days	
-	Today	3 … +									
	Name		Assignee	Due date	1	Time estimat	e Time	tracked	Comments	Total time	
	0	Delivery [DEMO] / Schrute Farms / Retainer XYZ [Blog] The Battle of Schrute Farms <b>% Proof blog copy</b>		Today		∐ 15m	• 0:	00:00	Q	48 days	



#### 2. "Assignee" View

This View relies heavily on the "Role" or "Delivery Role" (shown below) Dropdown Custom Field we discussed earlier.

If you leverage *ClickUp* Templates and add a "Role" *Dropdown Custom Field* to every *Task*, you'll be able to easily assign those *Tasks* with this *View*.

#### Here's how to build the "Assignee" View:

- 1. Navigate to either a Folder or List (you can do either, but Folders will let you assign more work at one time!
- 2. Add a new List View.
- 3. Group the tasks by your "Role" Custom Field.
- 4. Subtasks should be shown as separate Tasks.
- 5. You can use the ClickUp Bulk Action Toolbar to select all Tasks for a specific "Role" and assign them to your team with a few clicks.

This View is perfect when you're beginning a project and need to assign a bunch of Tasks all at once!

21 tasks selected	0	R₊ Ø ♥ ₺ @		Ô •	6 *	ර 🗳 🗇		Copy to clipboa
🔯 Duck Duck Grow 🗸	Delivery [DEMO] / 🗅 So	Q Search	× DISMISS					
<ul> <li>团 Dashboards</li> <li>안 Whiteboards</li> <li>··· More</li> </ul>	器 Overview ৳ Schrute F	Unassign PEOPLE	Progress View		asignee View	3 more + \	/iew	Q Search 🛱 Hi
Favorites > Spaces <\$ Shared with me	Strategist 16 ···     Copywriter 21 ··· +     Name	Me Andrew Dymski Profile S Ciro Campos	Due d 👔	Time estim	Time tracked	Comments	🚖 Delivery Role	۲
Security Constants (DEMO)	Retainer XYZ     Blog Post     Write blog c	Gray MacKenzie 🥺 🥏	3/8/24	⊠ 1h	• 0:00:00	Q	Copywriter	
Delivery [DEMO]     Schrute Farms	Retainer XYZ Blog Post & Complete b	Besiana Aiazi     Send notifications	3/12/24	区 30m	• 0:00:00	Q	Copywriter	
Retainer XYZ     S     Review & Strategy	Retainer XYZ Blog Post & Write blog o	сору 🛆	3/14/24	🛛 2h 30m	• 0:00:00	Q	Copywriter	
Schrute Farms <> ZenPilot	etainer XYZ المالي المالي Retainer XYZ Blog Post ده Apply blog	proofing revisions 🛆	3/19/24	IST 15m	• 0:00:00	Q	Copywriter	
Michael Scott Paper Co.	Retainer XYZ VCS - Schrute Far % Write blog o	ms putline / interview $\equiv$ 0/2 $\triangle$	3/22/24	区 1h	• 0:00:00	Q	Copywriter	
Athlead	VCS - Schrute Far	ms log interview with client △	3/26/24	⊠ 30m	• 0:00:00	Q	Copywriter	
<ul> <li>Serenity by Jan</li> <li>LaVerne's Pies</li> </ul>	Retainer XYZ	ms 🚱	3/28/24	∑ 2h 30m	• 0:00:00	Q	Copywriter	
Client Manaαement × Assigned to Andrew Dymski.	Retainer XYZ Blog Post & Apply client	copy revisions to blog 🛆	3/29/24	⊠ 30m	• 0:00:00	Q	Copywriter	
O Undo	Retainer XYZ	-						



#### 3. "Date Remap" View

This View is actually a Gantt View. So for those who are Gantt lovers, this one is for you!

When you have a larger workflow built in ClickUp, you can leverage the *Gantt View* to remap a whole project or deliverable all at once. You'll leverage ClickUp *Dependencies* to make this happen.

Again, this is why *Templates* are super important. If you build you processes and save them as *Templates* in ClickUp, you can build *Dependencies* in to your *Tasks*, making it 10x easier to leverage this *View*.

#### Here's how to the "Date Remap" View:

- 1. Navigate to either a Folder or List.
- 2. Add a new Gantt View.
- 3. Click on the Customize button (located in the far right).
- 4. Select Gantt options.
- 5. Toggle on Hide and skip weekends and Reschedule dependencies.

Now, when you have the *Task* structure I mentioned earlier in our *Hierarchy* and *Templates* conversations, you can leverage the *Dependencies* to grab one *Task*, drag it in this *Gantt View* to change the *Due Date*, and your whole workflow with move with it!





#### 4. Workload View

The worst thing you can do as a business owner, leader, or manager is burn your team out. Burn out comes from both over OR underworking employees. To help with this, you need to create a *Workload View* at the *Everything* level in your ClickUp *Workspace*.

Creating a Workload View is relatively easy, but making it accurate isn't as easy. As mentioned, you'll want to build this at the *Everything* level to capture all work in your ClickUp Workspace. You'll also want to make sure *Subtasks* and *Weekends* are shown. To do this, just navigate to *Customize* and *Workload Options* and you can toggle them on (shown below).



#### To make your Workload View more accurate you'll want to follow a few basic principles:

- 1. Every Task must have a Due Date, Time Estimate, and Assignee. Your Workload View is built on these three ingredients.
- 2. Break down larger *Tasks* in to smaller "bite-sized" pieces.
- 3. Due Dates should be the "Do" date.
- 4. Assign only one person to a Task.
- 5. Always remap Overdue Tasks.
- 6. Build your processes and save them as ClickUp Templates.
- 7. "If it's not in ClickUp, it didn't happen". Get every Task in ClickUp!

For more information and a thorough break down of these principles, read our guide (+ video tutorial), "6 Steps to Accurate Workload & Capacity Visibility in ClickUp".



# Tip #5 - "Favorite" Your Favorite Views

Lastly, you will most likely have a few *Views* that you use on a regular basis. For me, that's obviously my "My Tasks" *View*. This is where I start and end my day.

In ClickUp, you can *Favorite Views*. This allows you to pin them to the top of your screen like a bookmark so that you can easily find them no matter where you are in your ClickUp *Workspace*.

					Q Search		жĸ	S AI	
Contraction Contr	= 章 Contracts by Health 🗃 Campaign Dashboard (demo) 🖃 [in:	stall] 🏅 ClickUş	p Leaderboard	🖃 [install] 🕐 T	ime Reporting	⊞ My Tasks		ew	Sha
A Home	T⊇ ZenPilot Knowledgebase T ≜ ô My Tasks T ⊇ QA View T ⊂ Closed w/o	Time Tracked	≣ No Assignee	23 more +	View	Q Search	₩ Hide · 2	🕸 Customize	Add Task 🖌 🗸
Inbox Docs	Group: Due date CSCbtas VIEW OPTIONS	AR Assignees	Show closed	Hide				Search task	ks
al Dashboards	Today 3 ··· + Add Task A Unpin	Assignee	Due date 🕥	Priority	Time estimate	Time tracked	Comments	Total time i	æ
Favorites ~ Q A	Delivery [DEMO] / h, Q3 Duplicate as		Today	□ □	X 1h	0:00:00	0	15 days	
≔ My Tasks	% Round 1: Intern	<i>e</i>	,		Aug				
😑 🔝 Deals	Blog Post     Sort fee More settings > ep	9	Today	F	⊠ 15m	0:00:00	Q	12 days	
E & Contracts by Health	Delivery (DEMO) / h Blog Post S. Post client fee	Ø	Today	F	⊠ 15m	• 0:00:00	Q	12 days	
Campaign Dashboard (demo)	+ Add Task				1 h 30 m			NaN days	
	<ul> <li>Monday 2 ··· + Add Task</li> </ul>								
Spaces	Name	Assignee	Due date 🕥	Priority	Time estimate	Time tracked	Comments	Total time i	۲
* Everything	Delivery (DEMO) / Michael Scott Paper Co. / Retainer XY Diverset Campaign) - "The Best Customer Service in Paper" <sup>6</sup> Round 1: QA & Send mockup to client for Review	Ø	Mon	Г	⊠ 15m	0:00:00	Q	15 days	
Derations	Delivery (DEMO) / Michael Scott Paper Co. / Retainer XY  () [Pinterest Campaign] - "The Best Customer Service in Paper"  2. Round 2: Interpret 8. Share Client England / ===0/4	9	Mon	P	⊠ 5m	0:00:00	Q	15 days	
Growth	+ Add Task				20 m			NaN days	
© CRM									
Process Library 3.0	Future 29 ··· + Add Task		Dura data	Delasta	Time actionate	There has also d	C	Total films - I	0
EOS®	Name	Assignee	Due daté (1)	Priority	rime estimate	rime tracked	comments	rotal time I	•
View all Spaces Create Space	© [Pinterest Campaign] - "The Best Customer Service in Paper" % Round 2: Client Copy Revisions = ⊞ 0/3 △		Dec 27	F	⊠ 30m	• 0:00:00	Q	15 days	

#### Here's how to Favorite Views:

- 1. Navigate to the *View* you'd like to favorite and click on it.
- 2. Click on the Add to favorites button.
- 3. Find your Favorites in the Sidebar Menu above your Spaces.
- 4. Hover over the Favorites section and click on the Pin to favorites button.

You'll now be able to easily navigate from *View* to *View* with only a few clicks! Plus, if you're a avid ClickUp Dashboard user, you can also Favorite Dashboards and they'll show up right next to your Favorite Views!



# Step 10: Training Your Team & Launching

This is key part of the ClickUp implementation process that most teams miss.

After you've carefully designed out your ClickUp *Workspace* with the proper *Hierarchy*, *Views*, and *Custom Fields*, and you've built all of your processes and saved them as ClickUp *Templates*, you're ready to invite your full team to ClickUp!

If you've already invited your team, that's fine, but I'd highly recommend you wait to get everything set up correctly first. You don't want your team jumping in, getting confused, and losing momentum right off the bat.

But beyond the right framework and setup, setting your business up for success while using ClickUp boils down to also having clear rules of engagement, educating everyone on why and how to follow those rules, and then disciplined accountability in your execution.

#### When you train your team, your training should revolve around 2 types of education:

- 1. Your expectations and ground rules around project management as a whole.
- 2. Orientation to ClickUp itself, your tool, and how to use it.

For example, we put everyone that works with us through a **Project Management in ClickUp Certification program**.

Project Management	in ClickUp	Lessons ×
Less Eve		<ul> <li>✓ Getting Your ZenPilot Implementation Started</li> <li>&gt; Let's kickoff your ZenPilot Implement:</li> <li>&gt; 10 Commandments of Agency Project</li> <li>&gt; \$\$ ClickUp Basics (According to ZenPilot)</li> </ul>
Ca Heen	um (H) S. (B. C. (D. O. 3. C. Henryburg), C. Stenson, C. Stenson, X. Construinte, X. Construinte, K. and C. Stenson, C. Stenson, C. Stenson, C. Stenson, St. (2.4)	VISUAL - ClickUp Hierarchy by ZenPil
eventereta Gass	Deve Standard - Angere - Sea Annue - Annue Annue Annue Annue -	Hierarchy of the Workspace
C How E How	Everything	Understanding and Building Views
() two () two	Send Differences by the balance of t	Protected, Private, Pinned, and Favori
E Max	Control 1 - 4 March 1     Control 2 -	🤗 Adding, Removing People, and Adjusti
E ten	and the second s	<ul> <li>Creating Tasks</li> </ul>
😿 Open 📷 dense	tators	Task Statuses
■ Proc 38. View	C - Preg specials for Querierity Markening Strategy Revising and add to met.     Add Science     Add Science     Add Science     Add Science	The Power of Custom Fields
+ Crea	M State + Tadey 22 − + Mal Tali Man Augus Darf. 1 Denestions free faced Converses Mal Teres. 0	Adding Updating and Moving Custon
	Coopy Faired Campaign L 1 Δ // Tooly 0 40 days ····     Coopy Faired Campaign L 1 Δ // Tooly 0 40 days ····     Coopy Faired Campaign L 1 Δ // Tooly 0 40 days ····     Coopy Faired Campaign L 1 Δ // Tooly 0 40 days ····	Use of Color and Emoils on Custom Ei
	blanes (holican bahan dett) ● blands strandardar - Naha A V Westly Lady Taska (New ( ) ⊑ 0 0	Time Treeking and Editing Time Entrie
	of more provided were were all the second of the second o	W Overview of Spaces
<u>8</u> 10	e O e Bibbilge for A	
The	Everything Level shows all items in the workspace, as the name suggests!	
	he purpose is to provide visibility into all workspace content while surfacing the most relevant tasks and	Mission Control Querview
it	ems to users with various views and view types.	
• F	iltering and grouping make the volume of information in the Everything Level more manageable and	Growth Space Overview
		<ul> <li>Operations Space Overview</li> </ul>
	Complete lesson →	<ul> <li>Process Library Space Overview</li> </ul>



"ZenPilot came in with a framework, implementation, and training resources to move our agency through a lot of change in the way our 30 member team does things....change management that is super hard like task and time tracking!

They really know ClickUp, and we do some crazy complicated things in there. If you need help scaling and measuring operational performance in your agency, ZenPilot is a great partner to get it done."

Ben Labay CEO, Speero



The first thing anyone learns in our training is the 10 Commandments. These basic expectations are detailed and applied to real-world situations.

Commandment #1 is -> If it's not in ClickUp, it didn't happen.

There's little value in doing things halfway. If you want the ability to accurately forecast workload, follow a trail to figure out where things went off track for a project, or reward team members who deliver the best work, you need that work to be centralized in ClickUp.

Explain that expectation and show your team what that looks like. If you're not working with us, build your own list of expectations and turn it into a training product for new hires.

Add in detailed walkthroughs of how you want the tool to be used and the daily habits each team member needs to adopt.

Then keep that training up to date.

You will have better data to improve your decision making and your team will be more productive, aligned, and grateful.



# Step 11: Working in ClickUp

After your team is invited and working in ClickUp, what are the best ways for everyone to collaborate, communicate, and complete their work? For starters, everyone should have their *Notifications* and *My Settings* all set up correctly. After that, they should have their "My Tasks" View set up and ready to go.

But beyond the basics, let's walk through a few principles to follow when working as a team in ClickUp.

### **Creating Work**

Creating work is fairly straightforward in ClickUp. Well, to be honest, it's only straightforward if you've built your *Hierarchy* correctly and are leveraging *Templates*. A proper *Hierarchy* provides a clear home for every *Task*. Additionally, *Templates* will help you set up *Tasks*, assign them out, and bring necessary information as well (Dependencies, Custom Fields, Time Estimates,...).

I'd recommend you have certain people on your team that are in charge of deploying and assigning work. At ZenPilot, we leverage our "**Workload-Driven Project Management Methodology**" which clearly defines roles across our team for creating, deploying, assigning, and remapping work in ClickUp. Most often, account managers are the ones deploying work and project managers are assigning work, but that may vary team to team.





And yes, obviously not every *Task* will be created from a *Template*. You can create adhoc *Tasks* in your *Workspace*, just make sure they are put in to the right location and they have the proper information on them.

And as a reminder, if you want accurate workload visibility in ClickUp, every *Task* needs to have a *Time Estimate*, *Due Date*, and *Assignee*.

# **Completing Work and Communicating**

After work is deployed and everyone has work assigned to them, they can start working on their *Tasks*. Again, everyone should live out of their "My Tasks" *View*. This is where they will find their work, complete their work, track their time, and communicate.

#### Your Parent Tasks Should Be Communication Hubs

The Parent Task and Subtask structure I recommended earlier will serve you well here. Each person will be assigned to Subtasks. The Parent Task will NOT be assigned (unless it's a Parent Task with no Subtasks underneath it).

The Parent Task will serve as your communication hub for that specific deliverable. All communication needs to live in that Parent Task. Additionally, all drafts for that deliverable - document, image, video, or whatever it is - needs to live in the Parent Task. This is your source of truth for that deliverable. If you follow this framework, your team will have a much easier time getting all the context they need when completing their work.





#### Your Team Should Aim For "ClickUp Inbox Zero"

The other pro to centralizing communication in ClickUp is that your ClickUp *Inbox* will be clean and have everything that everyone needs to get their work done! Everyone on your team needs to live in their ClickUp *Inbox* and "My Tasks" *View*. This will provide them with their work, and any additional context they need to get their work done correctly. And if you "make the process live where the work gets done" and your SOPs are connected and living in your *Task Descriptions*, you'll also provide your team with needed *Task* instructions and directions.

All of this is a recipe for huge productivity gains!

"Thanks to ZenPilot's methodology, we've increased our overall productivity by 400% and revenue acquisition by 25%. The team strictly adheres to timelines and the budget, but internal stakeholders are particularly impressed with their knowledge and workforce methodology."



Director of Rev Ops, Seaworthy Strategy

# Adjusting Due Dates in ClickUp

**Shayla Pearson** 

Sadly, work doesn't always get done on time. Things may fall behind because priorities have shifted, someone went on PTO, or the team just fell behind. If work does fall behind, you'll want to have your project managers use your "Date Remap" *Gantt View* to remap *Due Dates*. This will keep all of the dates in your workflow together.

If you just adjust a Due Date in your "My Tasks" View, this won't adjust any of the other Tasks (unless you have the Reschedule Dependencies ClickApp turned on, which can be a nightmare so be careful with this). The Gantt View allows you to leverage your Dependencies for remapping work, while also skipping weekends!

Additionally, you want to make sure that your team is always leaving a paper trail. If they do fall behind and have to move a *Due Date*, they should leave a comment on that *Task*, @ mentioning stakeholders to let them know and provide a reason. Communicating like this will help your team build healthy habits and keep everyone aware, aligned, and accountable.

Healthy project management is all about the tools, processes, AND habits. These healthy habits are extremely important! Don't skip over them.



"We're significantly less distracted (especially in Slack). We are commenting where the work is being done and everything lives in ClickUp. The team was amazed at the paper trail and context they had on their tasks. It's a game changer!"



Matthew McIver CEO/Founder, Commence Studio

# **Running Meetings in ClickUp**

Additionally, you can and should run all of your meetings in ClickUp. You can run both client meetings and internal meetings inside of ClickUp.

🥏 Meeting Notes / 📁 Q2 - 2023 / 🛅 6	נד <u>ו</u> קי ערבים ביוסים ב	) Duplicate
Q. Search pages Schrute Farms Portal Meeting Notes C. 2023	Attendees: <ul> <li>Dwight Schrute (CEO, Schrute Farms)</li> <li>Jeff Cypher</li> </ul>	
<ul> <li>6/7/23</li> <li>5/31/23</li> <li>5/24/23</li> </ul>	Agenda: <ul> <li>Discussion of recent campaign results for the meta campaign</li> </ul>	
5/17/23	Key Points Discussed:	
	<ul> <li>Campaign Objectives:</li> <li>The primary objective of the meta campaign was to increase brand awareness and generate leads for Schrute Farms.</li> <li>Secondary objectives included promoting specific products/services, engaging with the target audience, and strengthening the company's online presence.</li> </ul>	
	<ul> <li>Campaign Channels and Tactics:         <ul> <li>The meta campaign utilized a combination of digital channels, including social media, email marketing, online advertising, and content marketing.</li> <li>Various tactics were implemented, such as creating engaging social media content, offering exclusive discounts, conducting webinars, and leveraging influencer partnerships.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	

Leverage ClickUp *Docs* to help you build agendas, store notes, and assign work out to your team. This will help store all of your information in one system and help you keep a nice running log of everything you've talked about in your meetings.

For more best practices and insights on how to best communicate, collaborate, and work inside of ClickUp, check out our article (+ video tutorial), **"How to Communicate Inside of ClickUp"**.



# Step 12: Optimizing, Optimizing, Optimizing

Once you've launched and your team has started working in ClickUp, there are a handful of specific things you should do to help your team get up to speed quickly and then hold everyone accountable to the standards you've set.

Specifically, within the first 2 weeks, you should set up a 1-on-1 meeting with each team member to assess their usage and spot any issues as early as possible.

Look at obvious things like their time tracked and time estimated totals, overdue tasks, completed tasks, and profile set up.

#### We recommend you follow this Four Step Accountability Process:

- 1. Analyze Performance: Monitor, record, and analyze *Workspace*, *Task*, and team member performance.
- 2. Prioritize Issues: Prioritize which issues have the greatest impact on workflow.
- 3. Optimize Your System: Design and implement new solutions to solve workflow issues.
- 4. Team Activation: Train the team on new solutions to help them be more efficient.





# Assign a ClickUp Champion

Additionally, to help optimize your ClickUp *Workspace*, we recommend you assign someone internally to act as your ClickUp Champion. This person will execute the consistent checks, address minor issues, escalate major issues as needed, and surface insights and aggregated data to the management team. To build healthy habits across your team, you should be following clear cadences for accountability, analysis, and improvement.

#### What Does Your ClickUp Champion Do?

The ClickUp Champion is responsible for the following tasks:

- 1. The Daily Spot Check: a 10-30 minute (depending on firm size) audit at the end of each work day
- 2. The Weekly Roundup: a slightly deeper dive on a weekly basis that leads to a short aggregated report to management
- 3. The Monthly Review: a monthly review that pulls data for management that should impact resource allocation, project scoping, pricing, etc.
- 4. The Quarterly Analysis: a comprehensive analysis that impacts time estimates, project planning, recruiting and hiring, client relationships, etc.

Ensure that you prioritize these tasks. Develop a comprehensive and well-documented process and assign it to a team member who will follow the process. This will enable them to provide valuable insights and maintain accountability, maximizing your investment in process development and ClickUp.

You can create ClickUp Dashboards to help your ClickUp Champion perform their duties. I'd recommend you build out a Time Reporting and ClickUp Leaderboard Dashboard to track this. For more ClickUp Dashboard ideas and setup instructions, check out our article (+ video tutorial), "6 ClickUp Dashboard Examples".

Dashboards / 🗰 Estimated vs. /	Actual 🔽								<b>~</b>	hare │ ✿	53
lit mode: 🕥								😂 Refreshed Jun 29 🛛 🖉 A	uto refresh: Off		+ Add c
Time Reporting - All Clients			Time Reporting - By Client			Time Reporting - By Users					
		nonth A 🛇			🖨 Last m	10nth A 🛇				onth A S	\$
Delivery	7:35:00			🖿 Kroger		0:45:00			0:15:00	20120100	
List - Client Management	0:30:00	0:20:00		Dunder Mifflin					9-15-00	29.30.38	
Wegmans				Prepare brief in parent task	0:15:00	0:15:00		Research topics & setup internal calendar	0:30:00	0:00:38	~
Trader Joe's		0:40:00		Develop copy for social post	0:30:00	0:30:00	~	Prepare brief in parent task			~
Kroger	0:30:00	0:45:00		Proof copy and share	0:15:00	0:10:00		Develop copy for social post			~
				feedback in next task	0.15.00	0:10:00	~	Proof copy and share	0:15:00	0:10:00	~



# **Create Advanced Views, Dashboards, and Automations**

As you continue to grow in ClickUp and your team gains momentum, you can start to look in to more advanced features (like *Automations*) in the platform or build out some pretty rad solutions. Part 2 of this guide, will walk you through all of the advanced solutions you can build out inside of ClickUp, but for now I'll leave you with a few additional articles and videos so that you can choose where you want to go next!

#### Here's a few advanced solutions I'd recommend:

- 1. <u>Internal Wiki</u>: Create an internal wiki or knowledgebase in ClickUp to keep your processes and tasks in one system.
- 2. EOS®: Run EOS (Entrepreneurial Operating System®) in ClickUp.
- 3. HubSpot Integration: Leverage the HubSpot to ClickUp integration to streamline onboarding.
- 4. CRM: Build a CRM directly in ClickUp.
- 5. <u>Client Portals</u>: Build client portals for your clients in ClickUp or communicate with clients directly in ClickUp.
- 6. Forms: Start leveraging ClickUp forms.
- 7. <u>Client Tracker</u>: Build a client tracker to start tracking client health, NPS scores, and contract data directly in ClickUp.
- 8. Project Management Ratio Reporting: Start tracking compliance, completed, and velocity ratios in ClickUp to improve project planning and execution.
- 9. Agile in ClickUp: Implement an Agile framework for your team in ClickUp.

Start simple, gain momentum, and then explore what else is out there. Or just hire a Verified ClickUp Consultant like ZenPilot, to help you make the most out of your ClickUp investment 😂.

"After ZenPilot and ClickUp helped us gain full visibility into our production resources, we've been able to increase utilization by 29% which has been a huge win for our team."

Nate End COO, Trinity Insight





# Looking for an 'Easy Button'?

At this point, you've hopefully successfully self-implemented ClickUp and are experiencing a much healthier, productive and profitable team. If you did and are, let us know! We'd love to hear about your success story.

However, If you need some guidance on taking the chaos out of project management and getting ClickUp implemented for your team, please reach out.

 $\rightarrow$  We've helped business owners increase productivity by 400%, completely remove themselves from operations, and sell their business.

→ We've helped businesses grow profits by \$1.2 million in year 1, triple headcount seamlessly, and improve client retention.

→ We've helped lead complete culture resets, increased employee satisfaction, and slashed team turnover.

# SCHEDULE MY FREE STRATEGY OPS CALL →

"Taking your operations seriously will change your life. And we want you to experience this life-changing impact. We've helped 3,000 different teams streamline their operations in ClickUp.

So, if you're ready to stop switching pm tools and finally experience the power of world-class operations, book a free stategy call with us."

Jeff Cypher Head of Marketing, ZenPilot







ZenPilot helps you put an end to chaotic project management so that you can stop switching tools, frustrating your team, and wasting thousands of dollars in lost productivity every month.

We are the largest and highest-rated solutions partner for ClickUp, and we've helped over 2,700 different teams deliver better client services without all the chaos. For more information, visit www.zenpilot.com.

